

Premier Gateway

Scoped Subwatershed Study

Phase 2: Impact Assessment and Management Strategy Final Report





Premier Gateway Scoped Subwatershed Study Phase 2: Impact Assessment and Management Strategy Final Report

Submitted to: Town of Halton Hills

Submitted by:

Amec Foster Wheeler Environment & Infrastructure 3450 Harvester Road, Unit 100 Burlington, ON L7N 3W5 Tel: (905) 335-2353

September 2017 (Revised May 2018; Revised April 2020)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

1.0	INTR	ODUCTIC	DN	1
2.0	SUM	MARY OF	PHASE 1: SUBWATERSHED STUDY CHARACTERIZATION	2
	2.1	Surface	e Water	2
		2.1.1	Hydrology	2
		2.1.2	Hydraulics	4
	2.2	Ground	water	4
	2.3	Stream	Morphology	5
		2.3.1	Reach Delineation	5
		2.3.2	Historic Assessment	5
		2.3.3	Meander Belt Width Delineation	6
		2.3.4	HDF Assessment	6
		2.3.5	Rapid Assessments	8
		2.3.6	Erosion Thresholds	8
	2.4	Natural	Environment	8
		2.4.1	Fisheries/Aquatics	8
		2.4.2	Terrestrial Ecology/Systems	9
3.0) USE PL	AN	12
4.0	IMPA	CT ASSE	ESSMENT	14
	4.1	Surface	Water / Water Quality	14
		4.1.1	Future Uncontrolled Land Use Conditions	14
		4.1.2	Stormwater Management Systems Sizing (Quantity and Quality).	20
		4.1.3	Water Budget and Runoff Volume Management	25
		4.1.4	Recommended Stormwater Management Plan	26
	4.2	Stream	Morphology	27
		4.2.1	Meander Belt Widths	28
		4.2.2	Stream Length and Realignment	30
		4.2.3	Road Crossings and Alignments	32
		4.2.4	Stormwater Management and Erosion Thresholds	34
	4.3	Natural	Environment	34
5.0	RECO	OMMEND	ED ENVIRONMENTAL AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLA	N .40
	5.1	Stormw	ater Management	40
	5.2	ourses and HDFs	44	
		5.2.1	Road Crossings and Alignment	47
		5.2.2	Erosion Thresholds	47
	53	Natural	Heritage	48

6.0	REQ	UIREMEN	NTS FOR FUTURE STUDIES	52
	6.1	Subwat	tershed Impact Studies	52
	6.2	Functio	onal Servicing Studies	55
	6.3	Stormw	vater Management Plans	55
		6.3.1	Functional Design	55
		6.3.2	Detailed Design	56
	6.4	Natural	Channel Design Briefs	56
	6.5	Monitor	ring and Adaptive Management Plans	56
		6.5.1	Surface Water Quantity	56
		6.5.2	Surface Water Quality and Temperature	57
		6.5.3	Groundwater	58
		6.5.4	Stream Morphology	58
		6.5.5	Natural Environment	60

LIST OF APPENDICES

- Appendix A: Correspondence
- Appendix B: Hydrology and Hydraulics
- Appendix C: Drawdown Calculations
- Appendix D: Fluvial Geomorphology
- Appendix E: Aquatic and Terrestrial Ecology

Amec Foster Wheeler Environment & Infrastructure is committed to achieving sustainability through balancing economic growth, social responsibility and environmental protection. Learn more at: http://amecfw.com/aboutus/sustainability.htm.

1.0 INTRODUCTION

The Premier Gateway Lands in the Town of Halton Hills are generally bounded by Sixth Line to the west, Eighth Line to the east, Steeles Avenue to the south, and lie south of 5 Sideroad. In 2015, the Town initiated the Premier Gateway Phase 1B Employment Area Integrated Planning Project to prepare a detailed Secondary Plan which includes appropriate land use designations and policies for the Phase 1B Employment Area and identify up to 75 ha of additional land to be designated for employment and added to the Premier Gateway Employment Area to replace the shortfall of designated employment lands to the current 2021 planning horizon in the Town. As part of this process, a Scoped Subwatershed Study has been initiated in order to define and establish the constraints and opportunities within the Premier Gateway Lands related to the terrestrial and aquatic ecology, stream systems, and surface water and groundwater resources (quantity/quality).

The Scoped Subwatershed Study has been completed in the following phases:

- Phase 1: Study Area Characterization (under separate cover)
- Phase 2: Impact Assessment and Management Strategy

The Phase 1 Report has been completed in February 2016 and presented to the Technical Steering Committee for review and comments. Comments received from the representatives of the Steering Committee and associated responses and actions provided by the Town's Consulting Team are provided in Appendix 'A'. The Phase 1 Report has been updated on the basis of these comments.

This report summarizes the methodologies and results of the Phase 2: Impact Assessment and Management Strategy component of the overall Scoped Subwatershed Study. For context, relevant information is provided regarding the key findings from the Phase 1 Study Area Characterization, related to the overall characterization of the study area, which has informed the development of the management and implementation plan accordingly. Comments received from the representatives of the Steering Committee, and associated responses and actions provided by the Town's Consulting Team, regarding the Phase 2 report, are provided in Appendix 'A'.

2.0 SUMMARY OF PHASE 1: SUBWATERSHED STUDY CHARACTERIZATION

The following summarizes the key findings and characterization information from the Phase 1: Study Area Characterization.

2.1 Surface Water

2.1.1 Hydrology

The study area is situated within Subwatershed 4 of the Sixteen Mile Creek Watershed. The existing land use conditions within the Premier Gateway Lands are generally agricultural, golf course, and open space, with some isolated residential and commercial land use fronting Steeles Avenue. The study area drains from the north to the south, and conveys runoff from lands to the north through the study area via open watercourses. Lands south of Premier Gateway Lands form part of the Highway 401 Corridor which either have been developed recently, or are approved for future development. The soils within the Premier Gateway study area consist of Chinguacousy clay loam, Jeddo clay loam and Oneida clay loam, which are classified as SCS Type 'C' soils, exhibiting relatively low rates of infiltration and comparatively higher rates of runoff. Outside of the Premier Gateway Area, soils exhibited higher permeability and lower runoff potential. Surface slopes within the Premier Gateway Lands are typically low, ranging from approximately 0.2% to 3.5%.

Hydrologic analyses have been completed using the HSP-F hydrologic model for the existing land use conditions within the study area. The hydrologic model has been calibrated using local flow and rainfall data collected as part of the field monitoring program for the Scoped Subwatershed Study. Peak frequency flows have been established for the study area using continuous simulation and frequency analysis, and peak Regional Storm peak flows has been established by executing the Regional (Hurricane Hazel) Storm event as a discrete storm event. The subcatchments boundary plan for existing land use conditions is provided in Drawing WR-1.

Following consultation with Conservation Halton staff, the hydrologic analyses for the existing land use condition have applied the calibrated model parameters for the continuous simulation, and the uncalibrated model parameters for the Regional Storm event. Correspondence regarding the revised approach is provided in Appendix 'A' for reference. The peak frequency flows and Regional Storm event peak flows corresponding to the approved modelling for the existing land use condition are provided in Table 2.1.1.

Table 2.1.1	Simulated Peak Frequency Flows and Regional Storm Event Flows for Existing Land Use Conditions (m ³ /s)									
Reference	Location				Frequ	ency (`	Years)			
Node	Location	1.25	2	5	10	20	50	100	Regional	
2.030	Downstream of Sixth Line	2.2	4.9	11	16.9	24	35.7	46.5	82.1	
2.410	Downstream End of Subcatchment 241	0.1	0.2	0.3	0.4	0.5	0.6	0.8	2.21	
2.480	West Branch North of Steeles Ave	2.3	5.1	11.1	16.6	23.3	33.9	43.5	83.8	
2.440	Downstream End of Subcatchment 244	0.3	0.6	1.2	1.9	2.8	4.3	5.7	8.6	
2.430	Downstream End of Subcatchment 243	0.6	1.1	2.3	3.4	4.7	6.9	9.1	16.0	
2.451	Upstream End of Subcatchment 245	0.8	1.7	3.5	5.3	7.5	11.2	14.7	24.6	
2.661	Middle 16 Mile Creek at Steeles Ave	3.6	7.3	15.3	22.6	31.2	45	57.5	116	
2.500	Hornby Tributary Upstream of site	1	2.3	5	7.4	10.1	14.3	17.9	48.4	
2.510	Downstream End of Subcatchment 251	1.3	2.6	5.3	7.6	10.1	14.0	17.4	51.1	
2.541	Hornby Tributary at Trafalgar Road	0.5	0.7	0.9	1.1	1.3	1.5	1.7	6.51	
2.540	Downstream End of Subcatchment 254	0.6	0.8	1.1	1.4	1.6	1.8	2.0	7.9	
2.551	Upstream End of Subcatchment 255	1.8	3.4	6.2	8.5	11.0	14.9	18.2	59.0	
2.550	Hornby Tributary at Steeles Avenue	1.9	3.5	6.3	8.6	11.2	15	18.2	59	
2.651	Middle 16 Mile Creek at Highway 401	5.7	11.2	22	31.5	42.4	59.2	74.1	188	
2.650	Subwatershed 4 of Middle 16 Mile Creek Outlet	5.9	11.4	22.1	31.3	41.8	57.8	71.8	180	

The results of the continuous simulation have been used to assess the existing erosion potential at the identified erosion site, as well as along selected watercourses within the study area, based upon duration of time (in hours and percent to total time) during which the flows would be above the critical erosive flows. The results of this assessment are presented in Table 2.1.2.

Table 2.1.2 Erosion Assessment for Existing Land Use Conditions										
		Duration of Erosive Flows								
Reach	Location	Hours	Percent of Total Time							
W-T1-2b	West Branch of Middle 16 MC Trib.	28676	7.79							
HDF-1	East Branch of Middle 16 MC Trib.	25545	6.94							
E-T1-1	East Branch of Middle 16 MC Trib.	12079	3.28							
HT-2	Hornby Trib. at Steeles Ave	17577	4.77							
E-T1-2	Middle 16 MC-East Branch-North of Steeles Ave.	6431	1.75							
T-1	Middle 16 MC at Hwy 401	4015	1.09							
HT-1	Hornby Trib. At Hwy 401	21263	5.78							

2.1.2 Hydraulics

The Regional Storm peak flows presented in Table 2.1.1 have been used to develop floodline mapping through the Premier Gateway Lands. The updated HEC-RAS hydraulic model has been applied for this assessment. The updated Regulatory (Regional Storm) Floodline Mapping through the Premier Gateway lands is provided on Drawing WR-2. The updated floodline mapping for the Premier Gateway lands is noted to be comparable to the current floodline mapping developed as part of the 1986 Flood Damage Reduction Program (FDRP) for the Sixteen Mile Creek Watershed.

2.2 Groundwater

A summary of the significant hydrogeologic findings for the preliminary characterization include the following:

- ► The study area is within the Peel Plain physiographic region.
- ▶ The surficial overburden consists primarily of the clay silt, silty sand Halton till and glaciolacustrine silt and clay. Within the Halton till discrete silt layers and sand pockets exist.
- ► These sediments tend to reduce recharge, lateral and vertical groundwater flow and associated groundwater discharge.
- If sufficient groundwater gradients exist and more permeable discrete pathways exist within the Halton till and silt sands, groundwater discharge may occur.
- ► The overburden is underlain by the Queenston shale. The upper portions of the Queenston shale can be extensively fractured.
- A buried bedrock valley is known to exist within and south of the study area.
- The overburden thickness ranges from 10 m to 30 m with the thickest sections correlating with the buried valley.
- A more extensive silty-sand to sand and gravel basal unit is present directly overlying the bedrock and appears to be thicker within the bedrock valley.
- Groundwater recharge values have been reported to be in the range of 80 mm/yr to 110 mm/yr.

- Groundwater supplies are obtained from both the over burden and the bedrock. Lager diameter dug or bored wells and drilled wells in the basal sand and gravel provide water in the overburden wells. The upper fracture shale provides water for the drilled bedrock wells. Wells generally provide sufficient quantities of quality water.
- Flowing wells in the basal sand and gravel and upper bedrock exist in the southern portion of the study area indicating significant upward gradients.
- Hydraulic connection of this lower unit to local wells, both overburden and bedrock, appears to have been demonstrated during a construction dewatering along Steeles Avenue east of Sixth Line.
- There is currently no site specific hydrostratigraphic data indicating direct linkages to the stream reaches.
- It is expected that the more regional groundwater system may provide for significant discharge potential within the study area to add to the potential lateral shallow component provided by the local recharge.
- Groundwater discharge appears to occur in various stream reaches based on stream flow and water temperature measurements and observations of Watercress (*Nasturtium* officinale).

2.3 Stream Morphology

The stream morphology component of the Phase 1 Study Area Characterization Assessment established existing and historic form and function for study area watercourses, all of which were associated with Middle Sixteen Mile Creek. This included an assessment of sediment movement within the system, channel planform evolution, and geometric characteristics relating to channel stability and function.

2.3.1 Reach Delineation

Following a review of aerial photography, previous reporting (Dillon, 2000), mapping (topography, watercourse, surficial geology) of watercourses and drainage features for the study area, and downstream were divided into "reaches". These reaches are lengths of channel that exhibit similar influences with respect to land cover, vegetation, valley setting, and hydrology. Channel characteristics such as pattern, geometry (mainly width), and gradient reflect these influencing factors, and are also used to help delineate reaches. Aerial photography was used to identify less defined and minor drainage features that could be potential HDFs. This exercise overall enables a grouping and comparison of channel characteristics throughout, and helps to guide field investigations. Refinements to the reach/HDF delineation were made in the field. A total of 13 stream reaches and 11 HDFs were identified during the reach delineation (see Figure 2.3.1).

2.3.2 Historic Assessment

Land development through the study area mostly occurred between 1954 and 1978 including: Trafalgar Road extension, Hornby Glen Golf Course construction, Hornby Park construction, and several small residential properties along Sixth Line and Steeles Avenue. Channel straightening was evident in the earliest photos as some reaches and HDFs were relocated to the boundaries of crop fields. Minor realignments accompanied road work, or development at the golf course. The golf course further impacted drainage through the creation of ponds, and intermittent piping along a drainage feature. Planform changes were noted throughout, mainly for reaches through agricultural zones with minimal riparian buffers. Migration rates could not be accurately determined as a result of photo quality and georeferencing issues.

2.3.3 Meander Belt Width Delineation

In order to identify the hazard associated with channel erosion, a meander belt width delineation was completed for watercourse reaches within and downstream of the study area, and appropriate setbacks were applied to create a final hazard corridor. A process-based methodology was applied to determine the meander belt by utilizing a combination of background data, aerial photography (current and historic), and contour information. Meander belts were delineated for each reach, and because of the limited ability to quantify migration rates, an overall factor of safety of 20% (10% to either side of the meander belt) was added to the preliminary belt width to create the final hazard corridor (ref. Appendix D).

Side slopes, in general, were noted to be gradual. Most side slopes ranged from 3:1 to 5:1, with side slopes in some areas as gradual as 10:1 (approximately). Steep slopes (1.5 to 1 or less) were noted along very few reaches (i.e two reaches at the downstream end of the golf course, and 1 location associated with grading to allow for vehicular access through a farm road).

Based upon the findings of the study team, all watercourse reaches through the study area have been classified as unconfined. However, per the direction of Conservation Halton, this is to be classification is to be confirmed as part of future studies.

2.3.4 HDF Assessment

Through a review of aerial photography and mapping, several smaller drainage features were identified for a HDF assessment. Following the guidance of the TRCA/CVC (2014) protocol, the HDFs were visited on multiple occasions based on the three visit recommendation set out in the TRCA/CVC protocol.

The goal of the TRCA/CVC protocol is to objectively classify those features on the landscape which are not considered permanent watercourses but appear to serve some hydrologic, terrestrial, riparian, or aquatic function. Due to the subjective, ill-defined nature of these features, the protocol at times does not adequately capture their function and importance. To address this, two management recommendations have been provided for the features assessed for this study: one based on strict adherence to the TRCA/CVC protocol (protocol management recommendation), and a second based on the protocol results and interpretation of overall function and importance of the feature in the context of the overall system (final management recommendation). Both recommendations are included in the HDF evaluation and management summary table (Appendix D-3), along with specific notes and rationale. The summary table and mapping (Figure 2.3.1) reflect the updates and agreements reached with Conservation Halton staff following the January 2017 site visit, and subsequent comments and meeting with the TAC, and internal discussions. Management recommendations range from No-Management to Protection.



Figure 2.3.1: HDF Identification and Final Management Classification.

2.3.5 Rapid Assessments

Overall, RGA scores characterized reaches as being either in-regime (stable), or in transition. Transitional scores were either low, or closer to the middle of the range between 'in-regime' or 'in-adjustment'. In general, area channels were widening and aggrading, with few having indication of degradation and planform adjustment. RSAT scores were moderate for all but two reaches which exhibited low stream quality. Limiting factors for low RSAT scores were poor riparian condition, in-stream habitat, and biological indicators.

2.3.6 Erosion Thresholds

Data from the detailed field assessment has been used to complete the erosion threshold analysis. This analysis determines the hydraulics (discharge, channel depth, average channel velocity) at which the channel produces sufficient shear stress to initiate mobilization of a given particle size (D_{crit}), i.e., the 'threshold' condition at which sediment will start to mobilize. It is then assumed that if this 'threshold' flow is sustained erosion will eventually occur, therefore the flow is referred to as the 'erosion threshold'.

Depending on the boundary materials in each reach, different methods (calculations) were applied in the determination of an appropriate erosion threshold.

Critical discharges provided for the impact assessment were: **1.49 m³/s** (W-T1-2), **0.38 m³/s** (HT-1), and **0.42 m³/s** (E-T2-1).

2.4 Natural Environment

2.4.1 Fisheries/Aquatics

Habitat assessments were conducted on watercourses in 2015 (May and November) to establish existing aquatic conditions and to identify and quantify key habitat areas within the study area. The habitat assessment included an inventory of barriers to fish migration, existing on-line ponds, sources of stream baseflow and groundwater discharge, temperature measurements, and notation of aquatic vegetation. Additional habitat characterizations included basic channel morphology, channel substrates, bank stability, dissolved oxygen, instream habitat and cover, and general comments about the reaches.

Electrofishing was conducted by aquatic biologists in September 2015 to determine the fish community within aquatic habitats in the study area. A spawning survey for Brook Trout (*Salvelinus fontinalis*) was conducted by aquatic biologists in November 2015 to determine whether this species was spawning in a cold-water section of creek that flows through the Hornby Glen Golf Course. Sampling for the benthic invertebrates was conducted in May 2015 using the Ontario Benthos Biomonitoring Network (OBBN) protocol and indices were used to assess the benthic invertebrate community.

Watercourses identified through stream morphology work were classified as permanent, intermittent, or ephemeral based on field observations, and are shown on Drawing E1. They have also been assigned a cold, cold-cool, cool, cool-warm, or warm water designation, based on surveys and background information, as shown on Drawing E5. Headwater drainage features

(HDF) are identified as such, and were assessed by Matrix Solutions. With the exception of the cold water designation for Golf001 and Golf003 (ref. Drawing E2), which are the upstream and downstream portions of the same channel segment, all other channel segments where water was present have been designated as cool water. All ephemeral channel segments have been designated as warm water. The East Branch of the Middle Branch of Sixteen Mile Creek showed some of the best habitat within the study area, with the observation of American Brook Lamprey (*Lampetra appendix*) and Brook Trout (*Salvelinus fontinalis*), as well as abundant Watercress.

Benthic invertebrate sampling indicated all the watercourses within the study area are impaired, with Steeles005, located along East Sixteen Mile Creek, being slightly less impaired than others. The greatest fish species diversity was observed within Steeles003, located along the West Branch of the Middle Branch of Sixteen Mile Creek. All monitoring locations are shown on Drawing E2.

Although spring sampling ensures that there is sufficient water flow to sample all available habitats, it may erroneously characterize ephemeral watercourses as providing high quality fish habitat. Summer or fall fish sampling is often preferred as it falls within low flow conditions and allows for the characterization of permanent fish populations. Given this, the sampling dates in September 2015 were deemed appropriate by the Study Team Aquatic Biologists. Conservation Halton expressed concern that watercourses providing fish habitat only on a seasonal basis were not sampled and their function may not have been fully characterized. As such, a conservative approach has been applied in assessing the watercourses in accordance with Conservation Halton direction.

Marginal habitat was not sampled within the fish sampling as minimal marginal habitat exists within the study area. The only site that could have been electrofished in May and June would have been Sixth001. This habitat has limited potential fish habitat, restricted to the lower portion of the reach (as observed in mid-November 2015). The only other habitats that could be marginal were observed as dry on of May 28, 2015 (Golf004, Golf002, Steeles001, and Trafalger001) when aquatic habitat assessments were conducted. Photos of the watercourses that were assessed are included in Appendix E.

Sampling stations for fish were located within the study area, as well as south of the study area, and were chosen in consultation with Conservation Halton (ref. Mason pers. comm. 2015, correspondence in Appendix E). Several sites were located downstream of the study area due to limited access, as well as due to dry conditions. Electrofishing was conducted downstream of confluences where possible to determine the communities of fish located in the area.

2.4.2 Terrestrial Ecology/Systems

Terrestrial field surveys were undertaken in 2015 within the subject area, where property access was granted, in order to characterize natural features and identify significant and sensitive natural heritage features and species. Vegetation community delineation was completed according to the standard Ecological Land Classification (ELC) System for southern Ontario (Lee et al. 1998),

along with a three-season detailed botanical survey. Other terrestrial surveys completed in 2015 included:

- Breeding bird surveys
- Owl survey
- Stick nest surveys
- Snake surveys
- Turtle surveys
- Anuran call count surveys
- Butterfly and odonate surveys

All surveys were completed in accordance with provincial and local guidance documents.

Wetland pockets within the subject area are very small and are not considered provincially significant. The wetland (MAS2-1) boundary to the northeast of Steeles and Trafalgar intersection was surveyed October 26, 2016 to determine its size, as it may be proposed to be removed and compensated for elsewhere. This was completed as per a request from Conservation Halton made at the Technical Advisory Committee meeting on October 24, 2016. The core areas of the marsh are dominated by Cattails (*Typha* species) and contain shallow, sporadic pooled water and some degree of organic soils. Fringe areas transition to sparse Cattails mixed with Lance-leaved Aster (*Symphyotrichum lanceolatum*) and occasional Rushes (*Scirpus* species). For a large portion of the eastern boundary, the edge of the agricultural field is more or less the boundary of the wetland. There is an overgrown grassed access to the field leading in from Trafalgar Road. This creates a separation of the 2 large wetland units by approximately 5m. A culvert was not observed because of the dense Cattails, at the time of the survey, but it was noted on the site visit with the Region of Halton and Conservation Halton in January 2017 (ref. McCabe and Howatt pers. comm. 2017).

Overall, the marsh is comprised of Cattails, Phragmites (*Phragmites australis*), Lance-leaved Aster, and Reed Canary Grass (*Phalaris arundinacea*), with a couple of Willow (*Salix* species) shrubs present, but otherwise no other trees or shrubs. There are a few other wetland indicators present, but fairly low diversity overall. The fringe and upland is Canada Goldenrod (*Solidago canadensis*), Smooth Brome (*Bromus inermis ssp. inermis*), Canada Thistle (*Cirsium arvense*), and Common Burdock (*Arctium minus ssp. minus*). The auto shop adjacent to the wetland appears to have encroached into the wetland historically, and there are a few areas of overgrown topsoil piles to the north of the auto shop, as well as a berm-like feature to the far east.

The Graminoid Meadow Marsh (MAM2) located along HDF HT-2b-2 was noted as an inclusion to a larger Cultural Meadow (CUM1). The wetland is dominated by Reed Canary Grass, with some Narrow-leaved Cattail (*Typha angustifolia*), Phragmites, and Purple Loosestrife (*Lythrum salicaria*). The latter two are highly invasive, non-native species.

The far eastern wetland pocket is dominated by Reed Canary Grass and exists because of human disturbance. Topographically it is separated from the actual cattail marsh by an area which is

fresh-moist meadow and contains no wetland species. The hydrology of the Reed Canary Grass area is also likely further influenced by the ditch on the north side of Steeles Avenue which would direct some amount of water into this lower area during high rainfall events, thus probably facilitating the wetter vegetation which would not naturally occur in the absence of the berm and the ditch. In total, the wetland areas surveyed are 1.26ha. Correspondence on the wetland, including a map, is attached in Appendix E.

Several Significant Wildlife Habitats were confirmed within the subject area, or considered as 'candidate':

- Bat Maternity Colonies (candidate)
- Amphibian Breeding Habitat (Woodland)
- ► Habitat for Species of Conservation Concern Eastern Wood-Pewee

The following Species at Risk were observed within the subject area:

- Barn Swallow
- Bobolink
- Eastern Meadowlark

Habitats within the subject area for Bobolink and Eastern Meadowlark are not considered optimal for either species due to the small, fragmented nature of the open fields, and all large fields are planted in soy and corn, unsuitable for these species. Butternut trees were also observed, but all were dead.

Based on the field surveys completed, as well as the Regional Natural Heritage System, a revised natural heritage system has been proposed, referred to as the Premier Gateway Natural Heritage System (PG NHS).

3.0 LAND USE PLAN

The Premier Gateway Phase 1B Secondary Plan Study is intended to establish a planning framework for the Phase 1B lands, to guide their future growth and development. It is being carried out in accordance with the *Planning Act* and the *Environmental Assessment Act* through the Municipal Class Environmental Assessment process for any future required municipal infrastructure. Through proposed modifications to Official Plan Amendment No. 10¹, for Premier Gateway Phase 1 Employment Area, to the 2021 planning horizon is proposed to be divided into two separate areas based on the phasing of development. The new Phase 1B Employment Area will be the focus for initial development and will identify the location of up to 75 hectares of additional land to be designated for employment and added to the Premier Gateway Employment Area to replace the shortfall of designated employment lands to the current 2021 planning horizon in the Town. To provide the framework for development, the Town has initiated a study process which includes the identification of the additional lands; appropriate related Regional and Local Official Plan amendments; a Secondary Plan for the expanded Employment Area, a Scoped Subwatershed Study and an Implementation Plan.

The Study is being undertaken in 5 phases with the following work program:

- ▶ Phase 1 Project Initiation;
- Phase 2A Existing Conditions;
- Phase 2B Scoped Subwatershed Study and Natural Heritage System Planning;
- Phase 3 Detailed Planning Study;
- Phase 4A Recommended Land Use Option;
- Phase 4B Preferred Land Use Plan;
- ▶ Phase 5A Draft Secondary Plan, Official Plan & Zoning By-law Amendments; and,
- ▶ Phase 5B Final Secondary Plan, Official Plan & Zoning By-law Amendments.

The Study process includes an extensive community engagement program which is designed to ensure meaningful consultation with all participants. It includes:

- Steering Committee Meetings;
- Technical Advisory Committee Meetings;
- Public Open Houses and Workshops;
- Statutory Open House;
- Statutory Public Meeting; and
- ▶ Reports to Council.

Two Public workshops have been held; the first was held on November 27, 2015 for the purpose to introduce the study. The meeting included an open house, an exercise to identify priorities for

¹ Official Plan Amendment 10 is designed to bring the Town's Official Plan into conformity with Regional Official Plan Amendment 38 which implements the Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe, the Greenbelt Plan and the Provincial Policy Statement in the Halton context.

the study area, a presentation on the existing study process and policy framework and a question and answer session.

The second workshop was held on June 22, 2016 and included an open house, as well as a presentation on the background analysis undertaken. It was followed by a working group session where participants were asked to complete a series of exercises regarding two land use concept options and reviewing the location of commercial development, the proposed road pattern, existing residential and other comments.

Subsequent to the public review, a preferred land use concept was created and was endorsed by Council which identifies the location for 75 hectares of new employment lands, a natural heritage system, various employment land uses, recognition of existing residential land uses, the transportation system, and areas subject to further analysis.

Drawing LU-1 reflects the Preferred Land Use Concept. The Concept would result in approximately 2700 jobs in the south half of the study area by 2031. For the 75 ha of land being added in the north half, assuming a density of 24.74 jobs per hectare (which is average for the total Premier Gateway Employment Lands), there would be approximately 1850 jobs in the north half for a total employment of approximately 4500 jobs in the Phase 1B Secondary Plan area.

The revised Preferred Land Use Concept has been evaluated with respect to transportation and servicing (water / wastewater). No significant changes have been identified arising from those technical evaluations.

The Preferred Land Use Concept will form the basis for the draft Secondary Plan and the Regional and Town Official Plan Amendments.

4.0 IMPACT ASSESSMENT

Analyses and assessments have been completed to determine the potential impacts of the proposed land use change within the Premier Gateway Lands on the area's natural resources, in the absence of contemporary management practices in-place. The purpose of the testing has been to specifically determine how the land use impact and management concept satisfies various objectives regarding the preservation and/or enhancement of natural features and system functionality. The following presents the findings of the impact assessment related to the specific study disciplines.

4.1 Surface Water / Water Quality

4.1.1 Future Uncontrolled Land Use Conditions

Surface Water

Hydrologic analyses have been completed in order to assess the impacts of the proposed land use concept for the Premier Gateway Lands, in the absence of stormwater management controls for flood and erosion control. The HSP-F hydrologic model for the existing land use conditions has been used for this assessment. The hydrologic model has been revised to represent the future land use condition as per land use plan provided (ref. LU-1). The model has been rediscretized within the limits of the Premier Gateway Lands in order to represent the future drainage areas and outlets, premised upon minimizing changes to drainage areas based on grading and retaining pre-development drainage patterns, while optimizing contributing drainage areas to support wet end-of-pipe facilities. The assumed impervious coverage for each land use is summarized in Table 4.1.1. The subcatchment parameters for key parameters of interest are summarized in Table 4.1.2, and a comparison of existing conditions and future conditions drainage areas to each reach are summarized in Table 4.1.3. The corresponding subcatchment boundary plan is presented in Drawing WR-3.

Table 4.1.1 Imperviousness / Coverage Values	Imperviousness / Coverage Values Based on Land Use								
Land Use	Imperviousness (%)								
Commercial	95								
Employment	90								
Natural Heritage System	5								
Cemetary	5								
Existing Residential	15								
External	3								

Table 4.1.2 Subca	tchment Parameters	for Future Land Use Con	ditions									
						Per	vious				Imper	vious
Subcatchment ID	Area (ha)	Imperviousness (%)	INFILT	UZSN	LZSN	INTFW	IRC	GWRC	SLOPE	LSUR	SLOPE	LSUR
			(mm/hr)	(mm)	(mm)	(day ¹)	(day ¹)	(day ¹)	(m/m)	(m)	(m/m)	(m)
203	2148.37	1%	5.55	12	100	4	0.5	0.97	0.0109	445.9	0.0109	222.9
204	283.54	1%	7.8	12	100	4	0.5	0.97	0.0087	327.9	0.0087	164.0
240	468.57	1%	7.8	12	100	4	0.5	0.97	0.0087	327.9	0.0087	164.0
241	2.59	8%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0998	31.9	0.0036	69.0
242	1.29	3%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0446	19.0	0.0010	40.0
243	1.93	5%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0200	16.2	0.0200	40.0
244	5.35	5%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0259	49.4	0.0200	40.0
245	1.41	3%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0137	32.8	0.0591	55.0
246	22.59	71%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0200	235.6	0.0200	40.0
247	1.17	3%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0043	117.0	0.0722	45.0
248	19.94	9%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0159	879.0	0.0071	35.0
250	873.3	1%	4.0	12	100	4	0.5	0.97	0.0085	401.8	0.0085	200.9
251	58.51	4%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0200	680.0	0.0200	40.0
252	14.79	4%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0200	233.0	0.0200	40.0
253	3.04	5%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0200	21.9	0.0200	40.0
254	3.31	5%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0217	87.3	0.0200	40.0
255	3.45	5%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0200	117.8	0.0200	40.0
260	4.73	12%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0031	225.2	0.0200	40.0
261	37.9	80%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0075	530.0	0.0309	89.0
262	24.42	70%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0071	423.0	0.0200	40.0
263	15.14	56%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0100	80.0	0.0050	318.0
264	39.76	72%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0100	80.0	0.0050	493.0
265	75.04	1%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0102	1228.0	0.0200	40.0
266	12.79	1%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0036	281.0	0.0200	40.0
267	11.14	1%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0365	130.0	0.0200	40.0
268	5.84	82%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0998	72.0	0.0050	40.0
269	5.59	5%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0998	68.9	0.0050	40.0
270	5.13	5%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0998	63.3	0.0050	40.0
271	3.05	90%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0998	37.6	0.0050	40.0
272	14.05	90%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0200	384.7	0.0071	40.0
273	6.60	5%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0446	97.1	0.0050	40.0
274	2.43	5%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0446	35.8	0.0050	40.0
275	4.20	90%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0200	97.8	0.0591	40.0
276	34.39	77%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0446	506.1	0.0050	40.0
277	4.47	90%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0200	37.4	0.0200	40.0
278	26.93	40%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0200	225.6	0.0200	40.0
279	18.23	65%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0200	622.5	0.0200	40.0
280	6.44	90%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0217	169.9	0.0200	40.0
281	13.63	92%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0217	359.6	0.0200	40.0
282	34.44	87%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0200	542.6	0.0200	40.0
283	31.91	90%	0.5	7.5	75	15	0.05	0.97	0.0200	502.7	0.0200	40.0

Table 4.1.3 Drainage Area Comparison (ha)								
Outlet	Existing Conditions	Future Conditions						
West Branch	17.47	22.20						
West Branch Tributary	47.57	58.76						
East Branch Tributary	807.71	796.40						
Middle 16 Mile Creek at Steeles Ave.	3070.80	3069.43						
Hornby Tributary at Steeles Ave.	1058.71	1061.05						
Total	4129.51	4130.48						

Table 4.1.3 shows minor (i.e. less than 0.025%) differences in the simulated total drainage area between existing and future conditions. As such, the hydrologic model for future land use conditions is considered to be representative of the hydrologic conditions within the Subwatershed under future land use conditions within the Premier Gateway area.

The HSP-F hydrologic model for the future land use conditions has been used to determine the peak frequency flow rates up to the 100 year event, as well as for the Regional Storm event at key locations within, and downstream of, the Premier Gateway Lands, in the absence of stormwater management controls. The simulated peak flow rates for future uncontrolled land use conditions are summarized in Table 4.1.4, and the percent difference compared to existing land use conditions are presented in Table 4.1.5.

Table 4.1.4	4 Simulated Peak Frequency Flows and Regional Storm Event Flows for Future Uncontrolled Land Use Conditions (m ³ /s)									
Reference					Freque	ncy (Ye	ars)			
Node	Location	1.25	2	5	10	20	50	100	Regional	
2.030	Downstream of Sixth Line	2.2	4.9	11	16.9	24	35.6	46.4	82.1	
2.410	Downstream End of Subcatchment 241	0.3	0.5	0.7	0.8	1	1.2	1.4	2.91	
2.480	West Branch North of Steeles Ave	2.4	5.1	11	16.5	23.1	33.8	43.7	83.2	
2.440/2.040	Downstream End of Subcatchment 204	0.2	0.5	1.2	1.9	2.9	4.4	6.0	8.2	
2.430/2.400	Downstream End of Subcatchment 240	0.5	1.0	2.1	3.2	4.6	6.9	9.2	13.9	
2.451/2.431	Upstream End of Subcatchment 243	0.8	1.6	3.4	5.2	7.4	11.4	15.3	22.1	
2.661	Middle 16 Mile Creek at Steeles Ave	5.6	9.3	16.5	22.6	29.7	41	51.2	117	
2.500	Hornby Tributary Upstream of site	1	2.3	5	7.4	10.1	14.3	17.9	48.4	
2.510	Downstream End of Subcatchment 251	1.2	2.6	5.3	7.6	10.2	14.1	17.4	51.1	
2.541	Hornby Tributary at Trafalgar Road	1.3	1.8	2.4	2.8	3.1	3.5	3.8	7.15	
2.540	Downstream End of Subcatchment 254	2.7	3.7	4.8	5.5	6.0	6.7	7.2	13.0	
2.551	Upstream End of Subcatchment 255	3.5	5.2	7.6	9.3	11.0	13.3	15.0	60.8	
2.550	Hornby Tributary at Steeles Avenue	4.3	6.2	8.7	10.3	11.8	13.6	15	62.9	
2.651	Middle 16 Mile Creek at Highway 401	9.6	15.1	24.7	32.4	40.9	53.5	64.4	192	
2.650	Subwatershed 4 of Middle 16 Mile Creek Outlet	8.5	13.8	23.4	31.4	40.5	54.3	66.4	185	

Table 4.1.5	Percent Change in Simulated Peak Frequency Flows and Regional Storm Event										
	Flows for Future Uncontrolled Land Use Conditions Compared to Existing Land										
Reference	Use Conditions	Frequency (Years)									
Node	Location	1.25	2	5	10	20	50	100	Regional		
2.030	Downstream of Sixth Line	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	-0.3	-0.2	0.0		
2.410	Downstream End of Subcatchment 241	200.0	150.0	133.3	100.0	100.0	100.0	75.0	31.7		
2.480	West Branch North of Steeles Ave	4.3	0.0	-0.9	-0.6	-0.9	-0.3	0.5	-0.7		
2.440	Downstream End of Subcatchment 244	-33.3	-16.7	0.0	0.0	3.6	2.3	5.3	-4.7		
-2.430	Downstream End of Subcatchment 243	-16.7	-9.1	-8.7	-5.9	-2.1	0.0	1.1	-13.1		
2.451	Upstream End of Subcatchment 245	0.0	-5.9	-2.9	-1.9	-1.3	1.8	4.1	-10.2		
2.661	Middle 16 Mile Creek at Steeles Ave	55.6	27.4	7.8	0.0	-4.8	-8.9	-11.0	0.9		
2.500	Hornby Tributary Upstream of site	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0		
2.510	Downstream End of Subcatchment 251	-7.7	0.0	0.0	0.0	1.0	0.7	0.0	0.0		
2.541	Hornby Tributary at Trafalgar Road	160.0	157.1	166.7	154.5	138.5	133.3	123.5	9.8		
2.540	Downstream End of Subcatchment 254	350.0	362.5	336.4	292.9	275.0	272.2	260.0	64.6		
2.551	Upstream End of Subcatchment 255	94.4	52.9	22.6	9.4	0.0	-10.7	-17.6	3.1		

Table 4.1.5	Percent Change in Simulated Peak Frequency Flows and Regional Storm Event Flows for Future Uncontrolled Land Use Conditions Compared to Existing Land Use Conditions (%)									
Reference	Location				Freque	ency (Ye	ars)			
Node	Location	1.25	2	5	10	20	50	100	Regional	
2.550	Hornby Tributary at Steeles Avenue	126.3	77.1	38.1	19.8	5.4	-9.3	-17.6	6.6	
2.651	Middle 16 Mile Creek at Highway 401	68.4	34.8	12.3	2.9	-3.5	-9.6	-13.1	2.1	
2.650	Subwatershed 4 of Middle 16 Mile Creek Outlet	44.1	21.1	5.9	0.3	-3.1	-6.1	-7.5	2.8	

The results in Table 4.1.5 indicate that the proposed development of the Premier Gateway Lands would be anticipated to increase peak flows locally and downstream during the more frequent storm events (i.e. 2 year and lower). The results further indicate that peak flows during the less frequent events (i.e. 10 year through 100 year) would increase locally as a result of the proposed development, although reductions may occur further downstream within the subwatershed due to shifts in the timing of peak flows. Furthermore, the results indicate that Regional Storm peak flows would be anticipated to increase locally and downstream, although the increase in Regional Storm peak flows online the receiving watercourses downstream would be anticipated to be relatively minor.

Additional analyses have been completed to determine the increased erosion potential which would result from the proposed development of the Premier Gateway Lands. These analyses have assessed the duration of flow above the critical flow rate at the key locations downstream of the Premier Gateway, based upon the findings of the fluvial geomorphologic assessment. The results of this assessment are presented in Table 4.1.6 based upon hours exceedance and Table 4.1.6 based upon percentage of total duration.

Table 4.1.6 Eros exce	Erosion Assessment for Future Uncontrolled Land Use Conditions (hours exceedance)									
Erosion Site IDExisting Land Use ConditionsFuture Uncontrolled Land Use ConditionsDifference (%)										
E-T1-2	6431	6402	-0.5							
T-1	4015	4278	6.5							
HT-1	21263	24983	17.5							

Table 4.1.7 Erosion Assessment for Future Uncontrolled Land Use Conditions (percent total duration)										
Erosion Site IDExisting Land Use ConditionsFuture Uncontrolled Land Use ConditionsDifference										
E-T1-2	1.75	1.74	-0.01							
T-1	1.09	1.16	0.07							
HT-1	5.78	6.79	1.01							

The results in Tables 4.1.6 and 4.1.7 indicate that the future development of the Premier Gateway Lands would increase the erosion potential at sites E-T1-2 and HT-1, however would decrease the erosion potential at site T-1 along the Sixteen Mile Creek at Highway 401. The information in Table 4.1.7 indicates that sites E-T1-2 and T-1 exhibit a relatively low erosion potential, as demonstrated by the relatively lower duration of erosive flows, however site HT-1 exhibits a higher erosion potential as demonstrated by the higher duration of erosive flows.

Surface Water Quality

Urban development is recognized to increase the concentration and total mass loadings of various water quality indices, specifically metals and oils/grease, compared to pre-developed land use conditions. If unmitigated, these changes in surface water chemistry could result in adverse impacts to downstream aquatic and terrestrial systems which rely on surface water for sustenance. For this reason, current Provincial Guidelines require stormwater quality controls be implemented for all new development. Within the Sixteen Mile Creek Watershed, stormwater quality control to an *Enhanced* standard of treatment is required for all new development.

4.1.2 Stormwater Management Systems Sizing (Quantity and Quality)

Hydrologic analyses have been completed in order to determine the sizing criteria for stormwater management facilities which would be required to mitigate the hydrologic impacts of the future development, specifically related to increased off-site peak flows and erosion potential along the receiving watercourses. The HSP-F hydrologic model has been modified in order to incorporate routing elements, at the outlets of the future development subcatchments, representing stormwater quantity and erosion control practices within the future land use.

The unitary storage and discharge criteria for erosion and flood control have been iteratively adjusted until the requisite erosion and flood control has been achieved, premised upon providing peak flow reduction for all operating conditions (i.e. extended detention for erosion control and peak flow reduction for flood control up to the 100 year frequency flow condition), consistent with conventional practice. The unitary volumes have been adjusted by incremental multiples of 25 m³/imp. ha for this assessment, and the unitary discharge rates have been determined based upon the unitary critical erosion flow and 100 year frequency flow at locations downstream of the Premier Gateway Lands. The analyses have also evaluated requirements to provide post-to-pre control for the Regional Storm event along the regulated watercourses, consistent with current practice in Conservation Halton's jurisdiction. The resulting unitary storage and discharge criteria under this stormwater management scenario (end-of-pipe only) are summarized in Table 4.1.8.

Table 4.1.8Stormwater Management Facility Sizing Criteria for Future Land Use With Stormwater Management Scenario							
Quantity Component	Cumulative Unitary Volume (m³/impervious ha)	Unitary Discharge (m³/s/ha)					
West Branch (Subcatchment 241) & Hornby Tributary (Subcatchment 255)							
Erosion	250	0.0007					
25 Year	600	0.012					
100 Year	1000	0.028					
Regional Storm	2000	0.101					
West Branch Tributary (Subcatchment 242)							
Erosion	250	0.0007					
25 Year	600	0.012					
100 Year	1600	0.014					
Regional Storm	3200	0.4545					
East Branch Tributary (Subcatchment 245)							
Erosion	250	0.0007					
25 Year 600		0.012					

The HSP-F hydrologic model for the future land use conditions scenario has been revised to incorporate the storage-discharge relationships for the routing elements representing the various proposed stormwater management facilities within the study area, and the model executed for a 42 year continuous simulation. Frequency analyses have been completed using the simulated instantaneous annual maximum flow rates to determine the 2 year through 100 year frequency flows. The Regional Storm event has been simulated as a discrete storm event, and the simulated peak flows have been extracted from the model results. The simulated peak frequency and Regional Storm event flows are presented in Table 4.1.9, and the percent difference compared to existing land use conditions is presented in Table 4.1.10.

Table 4.1.9	Simulated Peak Frequency Flows and Regional Storm Event Flows for Future Land Use Conditions with Recommended Stormwater Management (m ³ /s)								
Reference		Frequency (Years)							
Node	Location	1.25	2	5	10	20	50	100	Regional
2.030	Downstream of Sixth Line	2.2	4.9	11	16.9	24	35.6	46.4	82.1
2.410	Downstream End of Subcatchment 241	0.1	0.2	0.3	0.4	0.5	0.6	0.7	2.11
2.480	West Branch North of Steeles Ave	2.2	5	11	16.6	23.2	33.8	43.5	82.9
2.440/2.040	Downstream End of Subcatchment 204	0.2	0.5	1.2	1.9	2.9	4.4	6.0	8.2
2.430/2.400	Downstream End of Subcatchment 240	0.4	0.9	2.1	3.2	4.7	7.3	9.7	13.9
2.451/2.431	Upstream End of Subcatchment 243	0.7	1.5	3.3	5.2	7.6	11.7	15.7	22.1
2.661	Middle 16 Mile Creek at Steeles Ave	3.3	7.1	15.1	22.4	31	44.8	57.1	115
2.500	Hornby Tributary Upstream of site	1	2.3	5	7.4	10.1	14.3	17.9	48.4
2.510	Downstream End of Subcatchment 251	1.2	2.6	5.3	7.6	10.2	14.1	17.4	51.1
2.541	Hornby Tributary at Trafalgar Road	0.2	0.3	0.6	0.7	0.9	1.2	1.4	4.07
2.540	Downstream End of Subcatchment 254	0.4	0.6	0.9	1.2	1.4	1.8	2.1	6.75
2.551	Upstream End of Subcatchment 255	1.6	3.1	5.9	8.2	10.7	14.4	17.5	57.9
2.550	Hornby Tributary at Steeles Avenue	1.7	3.3	6.1	8.4	10.9	14.6	17.7	58.7
2.651	Middle 16 Mile Creek at Highway 401	5.4	10.8	21.6	31	41.8	58.6	73.5	186
2.650	Subwatershed 4 of Middle 16 Mile Creek Outlet	5.6	11	21.7	30.9	41.3	57.3	71.2	179

Table 4.1.10 Percent Change in Simulated Peak Frequency Flows and Regional Storm Event									
Flows for Future Land Use Conditions with Recommended Stormwater									
Management Compared to Existing Land Use Conditions (%)									
Node	Location	1 25	2	5	10	20 -	rs) 50	100	Regional
2.030	Downstream of Sixth Line	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	-0.3	-0.2	0.0
2.410	Downstream End of Subcatchment 241	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	-12.5	-4.5
2.480	West Branch North of Steeles Ave	-4.3	-2.0	-0.9	0.0	-0.4	-0.3	0.0	-1.1
2.440/2.040	Downstream End of Subcatchment 204	-33.3	-16.7	0.0	0.0	3.6	2.3	5.3	-4.7
2.430/2.400	Downstream End of Subcatchment 240	-33.3	-18.2	-8.7	-5.9	0.0	5.8	6.6	-13.1
2.451/2.431	Upstream End of Subcatchment 243	-12.5	-11.8	-5.7	-1.9	1.3	4.5	6.8	-10.2
2.661	Middle 16 Mile Creek at Steeles Ave	-8.3	-2.7	-1.3	-0.9	-0.6	-0.4	-0.7	-0.9
2.500	Hornby Tributary Upstream of site	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
2.510	Downstream End of Subcatchment 251	-7.7	0.0	0.0	0.0	1.0	0.7	0.0	0.0
2.541	Hornby Tributary at Trafalgar Road	-60.0	-57.1	-33.3	-36.4	-30.8	-20.0	-17.6	-37.5
2.540	Downstream End of Subcatchment 254	-33.3	-25.0	-18.2	-14.3	-12.5	0.0	5.0	-14.6
2.551	Upstream End of Subcatchment 255	-11.1	-8.8	-4.8	-3.5	-2.7	-3.4	-3.8	-1.9
2.550	Hornby Tributary at Steeles Avenue	-10.5	-5.7	-3.2	-2.3	-2.7	-2.7	-2.7	-0.5
2.651	Middle 16 Mile Creek at Highway 401	-5.3	-3.6	-1.8	-1.6	-1.4	-1.0	-0.8	-1.1
2.650	Subwatershed 4 of Middle 16 Mile Creek Outlet	-5.1	-3.5	-1.8	-1.3	-1.2	-0.9	-0.8	-0.6

The results in Tables 4.1.9 and 4.1.10 indicate that the recommended stormwater management sizing criteria for the Premier Gateway Lands would control post-development flows to predevelopment levels at all key locations. The results indicate that peak flows would be anticipated to increase slightly at confluences within the Premier Gateway Area (i.e. Nodes 2.040, 2.400, 2.431, and 2.540) for less frequent events (i.e. 100 year frequency flow condition). However, these locations are along the NHS Regional Storm peak flows, which are greater than the 100 year frequency flow in these locations, is noted to remain at or below existing levels. As such, the increase in 100 year frequency flows at these select locations is not considered to represent a flood risk to the adjacent property. It is noted that peak flow decreases occur at reference Node 2.661, despite the lack of Regional Storm peak flow control provided on the East Branch. This is considered attributable to the separation in timing of peak flows along the East Branch, within the Premier Gateway study area, relative to the timing of peak flows from the external drainage areas

Additional analyses have been completed to determine the duration of flow above critical erosive flows under future land use conditions with recommended stormwater management. The results of this assessment are presented in Table 4.1.11 based upon the duration of erosive flows in hours, and Table 4.1.12 based upon the percent of total duration of flow.

Table 4.1.11 Erosion Assessment for Future Land Use Conditions with Recommended Stormwater Management (hours exceedance)						
	Hours Ex	Hours Exceedance				
Erosion Site ID	Existing Land Use Conditions	Future Controlled Land Use Conditions	(%)			
E-T1-2	6431	5805	-9.7			
T-1	4015	3893	-3.0			
HT-1	21263	21704	2.1			

Table 4.1.12 Erosion Assessment for Future Land Use Conditions with Recommended Stormwater Management (percent total duration)					
		Percent Total Dur	ation Exceedance	Difforonco	
Erosion Site ID		Existing Land Use Future Controlled		(%)	
		Conditions	Land Use Conditions	×	
E-T1-2		1.75	1.58	-0.17	
		1.09	1.06	-0.03	
HT-1		5.78	5.9	0.12	

The results in Tables 4.1.11 and 4.1.12 indicate that the recommended stormwater management criteria would mitigate the increased erosion potential along the receiving watercourses to within acceptable levels. Furthermore, additional analyses have indicated that the drawdown times within the respective end-of-pipe facilities would be in the range of 72 hours (i.e. 3 days), hence providing a drawdown time acceptable to the Municipality. Drawdown calculations are provided in Appendix C.

4.1.3 Water Budget and Runoff Volume Management

The potential impacts to the groundwater flow system from the proposed development include the following:

- An increase in impervious surfaces and soil compaction reduces the natural infiltration of groundwater leading to a subsequent decrease in groundwater levels, potential decrease in groundwater discharge and a decrease in recharge of local aquifers.
- ▶ The installation of water and sewer infrastructure can lead to the interception of shallow groundwater flow along the backfilled material altering shallow groundwater flow paths and creating leakage into sanitary and storm sewers.
- Installation of infrastructure below the water table leads to the potential need for dewatering during construction and post construction and a decrease in groundwater levels.
- Infrastructure construction may encounter more extreme hydraulic conditions, as described in the characterization, which have the potential for significant upward gradients, for transmittal of large quantities of groundwater and the potential for significant groundwater level reductions during dewatering. The depth of this hydraulically confined system may vary across the site and depth and local hydraulic characteristics need to be confirmed.
- ► The need to minimize runoff through enhanced infiltration.
- The removal of any existing tile drains which may lead to increased groundwater levels or remove direct discharge to the local tributaries.
- Potential reduction in groundwater levels and capacity in local water wells due to reduction in recharge and particularly dewatering for construction.

Hydrologic analyses have been completed to determine the change to the water budget resulting from the development of the Premier Gateway Lands. The assessment has evaluated both the local and subwatershed-scale impacts of the proposed development. The HSP-F hydrologic model has been revised to determine the groundwater recharge, surface runoff volume, and evapotranspiration under each land use condition. The results of this assessment are presented in Table 4.1.13.

Table 4.1.13 Water Budget Summary (mm/year)							
Location	Surface Runoff	Groundwater Recharge	Evapotranspiration				
Existing Land Use Conditions							
Secondary Plan Area	388	99	318				
Subwatershed (at Hwy. 401)	350 243		213				
Future Uncontrolled Land Use Conditions							
Secondary Plan Area	527	6	272				
Subwatershed (at Hwy. 401)	1) 360 235		211				
Difference							
Secondary Plan Area	139	-93	-46				
Subwatershed (at Hwy. 401)	10	-8	-2				

The results in Table 4.1.13 indicate that under uncontrolled conditions, the future development of the Premier Gateway Lands would increase surface runoff volume, and reduce groundwater recharge and evapotranspiration at both the local and subwatershed scale. The results further indicate that the change in water budget would be most pronounced at the local scale, however at the subwatershed scale the effects would be less significant due to the size of the development area relative to the total size of the subwatershed. Hydrologic analyses have been completed as part of other studies (i.e. Northwest Brampton Subwatershed Study, Amec et. al., June 2011; Milton Phase 4 Subwatershed Study, Amec Foster Wheeler et.al., April, 2018) to establish unitary sizing criteria for LID infiltration BMPs to maintain pre-development groundwater recharge. The results of the analyses have indicated that a relatively modest capture rates (i.e. 1-3 mm / impervious hectare) would be required to maintain pre-development groundwater recharge under urban land use conditions. Which this is to be confirmed as part of future studies (i.e. SISs), it is nevertheless anticipated that a similar rate of capture would be adequate to maintain pre-development groundwater recharge under urban land use recharge to that a similar rate of capture would be adequate to maintain pre-development groundwater recharge under urban land use conditions. Which this is to be confirmed as part of future studies (i.e. SISs), it is nevertheless anticipated that a similar rate of capture would be adequate to maintain pre-development groundwater recharge under urban land use conditions.

4.1.4 Recommended Stormwater Management Plan

The following technologies and practices are available to address the stormwater management criteria noted in the foregoing:

TSS removal as per MOECC criteria:

- ▶ Wet end-of-pipe facilities (i.e. wetlands, wet ponds, hybrid facilities).
- ▶ Vegetated technologies (i.e. grassed swales, buffer strips, etc.).
- ▶ Oil/grit separators.
- Bioswales/biofilters.
- Infiltration trenches.

Thermal control as per MNRF Guidelines:

- ► LID infiltration BMPs
- Urban terrestrial canopy (also NHS)
- ► Facility shading (includes orientation and length/width ratio)
- ► Facility cooling trenches
- Facility bottom draws
- Stormwater management facility orientation
- Concrete Sewer System
- Underground Storage Facilities
- ► Green & White roofs
- Floating Islands
- Other measures

Erosion Control:

- ► End-of-pipe facilities (i.e. wetlands, wet ponds, hybrid facilities, dry ponds)
- LID infiltration-based BMPs (i.e. bioswales/biofilters with underdrains, infiltration trenches, rain gardens, perforated pipes, etc.)

Flood/Quantity Control:

- ► End-of-pipe facilities (i.e. wetlands, wet ponds, hybrid facilities, dry ponds)
- Underground Storage Facilities
- Surface storage (i.e. rooftop/parking lot storage)

The selection of the appropriate stormwater management practice is dependent upon the size and land use conditions within the development area. The following general principles have been applied in developing the recommended stormwater management plan:

- i. Wet end-of-pipe facilities are preferred, particularly for residential developments, due to their ability to address multiple stormwater management requirements (i.e. quantity, quality, thermal mitigation, and erosion control).
- ii. Where drainage areas are insufficient to support an end-of-pipe facility (i.e. drainage areas less than 5 ha), source controls (i.e. underground storage, surface storage, LID BMP's, oil/grit separators, vegetated technologies, etc.) are to be applied.
- iii. LID BMP's are to be applied throughout the development area.
- iv. Regional Storm controls are to be incorporated into the design of wet end-of-pipe facilities.

It is noted that guidelines currently under development by the MOECC will provide guidance on the design and implementation of LID BMPs. At the time that the pending guidelines are implemented into industry practice, they should be considered during the selection of SWM technologies.

4.2 Stream Morphology

The assessment has focused on the potential impacts to watercourses based on the proposed land use plan. The primary impact to watercourses from urbanization relates to changes to the hydrologic regime as a result of increased impervious cover. Increased surface runoff can be largely mitigated through integrated stormwater management. However, it is difficult to fully mitigate the fundamental changes to the landscape and therefore the various targets outlined are employed to ensure key elements of the fluvial system are maintained and protected to help absorb any potential impacts which may arise. The targets acknowledge the risks associated with land use change and provide direction for best management practices. To assess if targets are properly met by the proposed land use plan, five (5) indicators were reviewed. The indicators and corresponding targets are outlined in Table 4.2.1.

Table 4.2.1 Indicator Employed in Phase 2 and Corresponding Targets							
Indicator	Target						
	Stream corridors are protected from interference						
Meander helt width corridors	Natural cover maintained in stream corridors						
	Minimize or eliminate risk to public and private property from						
	channel erosion and evolution						
Stream length and realignment	Maintain natural channel structure and rates of morphologic						
	change						
	Maintain natural channel structure and rates of morphologic						
Road crossings	change						
	Minimize or eliminate risk to public and private property from						
	channel erosion and evolution						
Stormwater management	Maintain natural channel structure and rates of morphologic						
facilities	change						
lacinties	Maintain critical flow exceedance at critical locations						
	Work toward maintaining pre-development water budget						
	Minimize or eliminate risk to public and private property from						
Erosion thresholds	channel erosion and evolution						
	Maintain natural channel structure and rates of morphologic						
	change						
	Maintain critical flow exceedance at critical locations						

4.2.1 Meander Belt Widths

A watercourse's meander belt width is a designated corridor that is intended to contain all of the natural meander and migration tendencies of a channel based on historic alignment and potential future alignment. This permits channel adjustment to occur without risking damage to surrounding infrastructure and property. Implementation and respect for the meander belt width corridor can reduce and control negative impacts which may occur as a result of urbanization. A secondary benefit of the meander belt width is to protect surrounding riparian vegetation. Development within the meander belt width is strictly limited to specific low impact and localized uses, such as trail or road crossings, and therefore disturbance to vegetation is minimized. Maintaining riparian vegetation ensures resiliency of the fluvial system as proper vegetative support reduces bank erosion and widening. Meander belt mapping is available in Appendix D. The update includes linework for HT-2b-2 (S3) and E-T1-4 which were upgraded from HDF to watercourse in 2017.

An additional erosion allowance and ecological buffers have been considered for the Premier Gateway Lands as setbacks to the meander belt corridor. Final corridor widths for each reach provides a continuous natural corridor, forming the Natural Heritage System (ref. Table 4.2.2).

In general, the NHS is noted to sufficiently contain the final corridors as depicted in Figure 4.2.1. However there are localized zones where the final corridor extends outside of the preliminary NHS. Most discrepancies occur in E-T1-3 where the final corridor limit falls outside of the NHS by approximately 13 m at the most, which is considered relatively minor. Similarly, discrepancies exist for E-T1-4 which is currently straightened and piped. However, it is anticipated that this reach will be remediated and realigned as part of future works, and the meander belt updated

accordingly, which will require refinements to the NHS at later planning and design stages (ref. Drawing E-7 in Appendix E for recommended reaches for realignment or remediation).

Table 4.2.2 Summary Meander belt and Final Corridor Widths						
Reach	Meander Belt Width (MBW) incl. 20% factor of safety (m)	MBW +Slope Allowance: 5 m each side (m)	<u>Final Corridor Width (m)</u> MBW + Slope Allowance + Regulation allowance: 15 m each side (m)			
HT-2b-1	21.6	31.6	61.6			
HT-2a-2	21.6	31.6	61.6			
HT-2a-1	43.2	53.2	83.2			
HT-2	36.0	46.0	76.0			
HT-2b-2 (S3)	6.48	16.48	46.48			
E-T1-4*	36.4	46.4	76.4			
E-T1-3	40.8	50.8	80.8			
E-T1-2	43.2	53.2	83.2			
E-T1-1	52.8	62.8	92.8			
W-T1-3	36.0	46.0	76.0			
W-T1-2a	16.8	26.8	56.8			
W-T1-2	96.0	96.0	136.0			
W-T1-1	33.6	43.6	73.6			

* Meander belt width derived using an empirical approach based on the contributing drainage area (Dunne T. and L.B. Leopold. 1978. Water in Environmental Planning, W.H. Freeman and Co., San Francisco, CA, 818pp).



Figure 4.2.1 Meander belt and final corridors overlain onto the preliminary NHS

4.2.2 Stream Length and Realignment

Changes in land use may result in realignments of existing watercourses, and/or the removal of headwater drainage features (HDFs) to increase developable area. This is particularly common in areas with several low-order streams which could be combined to reduce fragmentation of the land parcels, and which may enhance the existing natural heritage system. Modifications may be large-scale realignments or small-scale removal of a bend or reduction of sinuosity. These types of changes are more common in areas which are already partially or fully developed and land use changes are less significant. Realignment of watercourses in most cases is not supported, but it may be acceptable if the existing channel is degraded or has already been heavily modified as part of the existing land use. In these cases, the channel presents a restoration opportunity and realignment would be supported. Should realignments be proposed, it is critical to ensure that stream lengths are maintained at a minimum, which is subject to local constraints and additional elements proposed during the detailed design phase. Loss of stream length reduces aquatic habitat and reduces the fluvial system's ability to effectively convey water and sediment. Depending on the conditions, loss of stream length may increase channel slope increasing available potential energy which could lead to increased erosion.

The existing dominant land uses in the Premier Gateway Area are agricultural and recreational (golf course). These land use types are relatively low-impact compared to an urbanized

landscape. The Phase 1 assessment did not find that any of the watercourse reaches were severely geomorphically degraded in terms of function and stability as a result of the current land uses, although some were highly altered. With the exception of E-T1-4, there were no reaches where restoration through realignment and natural channel design have been advanced in support of the Secondary Plan. The main branches and tributaries should be protected as they currently exist to ensure natural function is maintained. In accordance with the results of the Phase 1 assessment, the proposed land use plan has not proposed any watercourse removals. Channel rehabilitation and realignment have been recommended for E-T1-4, and should maintain upstream and downstream connections. Furthermore, there are several opportunities for rehabilitation to enhance/restore banks or short segments within these protected stream reaches. Riparian enhancements, farm and golf course crossing removals (fords and culverts), and inchannel habitat features (e.g. wood debris) would benefit the form and function of area streams, and those receiving reaches downstream. Rehabilitation sites within the study area should be identified as land use plans progress, with the exception of HT-2a-2 which is located within the Halton Regional Forest (Coulson Tract).

Some minor, and very localized channel realignments or bank treatments may be required at existing road crossings should they be enhanced, and any proposed road crossings. These potential impacts are discussed in the section on road crossings below.

Headwater Drainage Features

Although area watercourses are primarily protected in place within the natural heritage corridor, HDFs have management recommendations ranging from 'no management' to 'protection'. Section 5.2 discusses each type of management recommendation, and the Phase 1 report describes protocols and rationale used to determine each recommendation. The headwater drainage feature summary table in Appendix D provides an overall review of feature evaluation, recommendations, and rationale.

Seven HDFs with 'no management' recommendations are proposed to be removed as they provide no value in terms of form or function, hydrologically or ecologically. These exist as vegetated golf course swales, or agricultural swales/furrows that are actively ploughed and cropped. The former produces little sediment to receiving features (a pond system), and the latter produce sediment of poor quality (fines, likely contaminated by fertilizer). Sediment production from agricultural swales or furrows mainly occurs post-freshet while the surface is still bare. The remaining HDFs are proposed to be protected within the Premier Gateway Natural Heritage System, with the exception of HT-2b-4 which has been recommended for 'conservation'. This feature is to be maintained to an extent whereby function, riparian corridor, and downstream watercourse connection remain or are enhanced. HT-2b-4 may be maintained, relocated, and/or enhanced, but needs to remain as an open water channel to convey flows from the outfall(s) at Steeles Avenue to the receiving watercourse. This feature can benefit from a slight realignment at the downstream end, as it is in close proximity to Trafalgar Road.

HDF-2 is the only feature currently recommended for protection in-situ, but some enhancements may be implemented.

In some cases, potential relocation has been proposed in the land use plan for degraded or highly impacted HDFs. Three HDFs that have potential relocation/realignment with classifications of 'conservation' (HDF-1), and 'mitigation' (HT-2b-3 and HT-2b-3c). These were created or heavily impacted by each land use (e.g. tilling, grazing, piping, and tile drains). As such, the relocation presents the opportunity to restore and enhance these features, including relocation towards other NHS features, reducing segmentation by developed land parcels.

HDF-1, a "conservation" class HDF, is identified as having relocation potential, as illustrated on Figures 4.2.1 and E-7. As this feature conveys drainage between the study area and the Greenbelt Plan Protected Countryside, where no realignments to Key Hydrologic Features and their associated Vegetation Protection Zones would be permitted, options for realignment of HDF-1 may be limited. The SIS must assess whether this realignment is feasible in consideration of Greenbelt Plan (2017) policies relating to development and site alteration in the vicinity of Key Hydrologic Features. If the lower reach within the Greenbelt NHS is deemed a Key Hydrologic Feature, it may not be possible to relocate the HDF corridor within the Protected Countryside.

It should be noted that HDF HT-2b-3 is classified by Conservation Halton as a watercourse, although the Town's Consulting Team has classified this feature as an HDF. Regardless of its classification, the stream is highly impacted and of poor form and function. The management recommendation for relocation and the accompanying enhancements (i.e. natural corridor design) remain the same under either classification.

4.2.3 Road Crossings and Alignments

Road crossings are an integral part of urbanization and an important consideration in terms of impacts to watercourses. A poorly sited road crossing can result in negative impacts to the channel and higher risk to the structure itself. There are a number of factors which should be considered when identifying the most appropriate location for a road crossing. For a large development area, it is important to minimize the number of times the proposed road network crosses the watercourse valley. This will reduce impacts to the watercourse as well as the surrounding natural heritage features. Road crossings should not be located within close succession to each other. Providing an adequate distance between crossings allows for an area of potential adjustment, if there are negative impacts to the watercourse as a result of the crossing structure. This minimizes the risk of compromising any additional structures located downstream.

On a local, site-specific scale there are several risk factors which need to be considered for the individual crossings. These risk factors are used to evaluate both crossing locations and determine appropriate structure spans and alignment:

Channel Size: The potential for lateral channel movement and erosion tends to increase with stream size. HDFs tend to exhibit low rates of lateral migration due to the stabilizing influence of vegetation on the channel bed and banks. Erosive forces in active watercourses tend to exceed the stabilizing properties of vegetation and result in higher migration rates.
- ► Valley Setting: Watercourses with wide, flat floodplains and low valley and channel slopes tend to migrate laterally across the floodplain over time. Watercourses that are confined in narrow, well drained valleys are less likely to erode laterally but are more susceptible to down-cutting and channel widening, particularly where there are changes in upstream land use. Typically the classification of the valley will fall into one of three categories: confined, partially confined, and unconfined. For confined and partially confined segments, an evaluation of the long-term stable top-of-slope should be completed to characterize the site prior to design.
- Meander Belt Width: The meander belt width represents the maximum expression of the meander pattern within a channel reach. Therefore, this width/corridor covers the lateral area that the channel could potentially occupy over time. This value has been used by regulatory agencies for corridor delineation associated with natural hazards and the meander belt width is typically of a similar dimension to the Regulatory floodplain. The use of the meander belt width of structure sizing has been established as a criterion by some regulatory agencies and represents a very conservative approach
- Meander Amplitude: The meander amplitude and wavelength are important parameters to ensure that channel processes and functions can be maintained within the crossing. For the purposes of this protocol, the meander amplitude of the watercourse would be measured in the vicinity of the crossing and used as a guide to determine the relative risk to the structure. The number of meander wavelengths to be considered is both dependent on the scale of the watercourse and the degree of valley confinement.
- Rapid Geomorphic Assessment (RGA) Score: An RGA score is essentially a measure of the stability of the channel. Channels that are unstable tend to be actively adjusting and thus are sensitive to the possible effects of the proposed crossing. Accordingly, there is more risk associated with unstable channels. While the actual RGA score will be reported, there are three levels of stability: 0-0.20 is stable; 0.21-0.40 is moderately stable; >0.40 is unstable.
- ▶ **100-year Migration Rates:** Using historical aerial photographs, migration rates may be quantified (where possible) for each crossing location. A higher migration rate indicates a more unstable system and higher geomorphic risk. Ideally, watercourse crossing structures should be aligned perpendicular to and centered on a straight section of channel, or at an appropriate skew that would not affect channel processes. In terms of sizing, the structure would ideally span the meander belt width in order to accommodate the downstream migration of meander features. In many cases, however, the costs prohibit such structure sizes. From a geomorphic perspective, larger structures are favoured to minimize the long-term risk and maintenance associated with natural channel adjustment.
- Proximity to Confluences: Crossings should be located at a sufficient distance from confluences so that the confluence and associated tributaries do not pose any erosive risk to the structure or approaches evaluate 100-year migration rates and trends where crossings are proximal to confluences.

The Phase 2 assessment has reviewed the proposed road crossing locations qualitatively in the context of these risk factors. Structure sizing is generally determined in subsequent planning

phases through detailed site-specific assessments once local grading and road alignments are better established. The proposed land use plan includes three (3) new road crossings, two (2) existing crossings, and three (3) potential crossings. Those which cross watercourses are at risk to erosion through natural migration, as are road segments proposed adjacent to the preliminary NHS. Considering the preliminary status of the road alignments, only existing crossings have been reviewed for their impact on morphological process. Management recommendations are provided in Section 5.2 at a high level, based on the risk factors considered above. Crossings are proposed for Reaches/HDFs HT-2b-1, HT-2b-3, ET-1-3, and HDF-1 (S1), and should be sized according to the guidelines above.

Additionally, structure sizing should consider wildlife and fish passage requirements in line with the Guide to Road Ecology in Ontario (2010), or other similar guidelines (e.g. TRCA, CVC). Hydraulic verification should also be completed to ensure there is no impact to conveyance capacity, in-stream velocities, and upstream and downstream floodlines, as well as to verify performance in accordance with the current standards for freeboard and clearance. A range of storm events should be evaluated (i.e. 2-year to 100-year, and Regional Storm events).

Section 4.3.5 provides further insights with regards to road crossing considerations and natural heritage features and functions.

4.2.4 Stormwater Management and Erosion Thresholds

Channel erosion is a necessary natural process; however anthropogenic pressures, such as uncontrolled stormwater runoff, may accelerate and exacerbate natural erosional processes, resulting in loss of property, threats to infrastructure and environmental degradation [e.g. smothering of fish nests (redds) through excessive deposition].

Erosion thresholds can be applied to provide insight regarding the capacity of each watercourse system to accommodate an altered land use or flow regime. Application of appropriate thresholds, as stormwater best management practice targets, should limit rates of erosion to pre-development conditions. This extends to areas downstream of the Premier Gateway Subwatershed Study Area.

Discussion of the erosion assessment is provided in Sections 4.1.1 and 4.1.2.

4.3 Natural Environment

Wetland at Steeles and Trafalgar

The Premier Gateway NHS was developed based on the Regional NHS. It was refined based on the site specific study. All natural heritage features identified through the characterization process of the project have been included in the Premier Gateway (PG) NHS. The cattail marsh to the northeast of the Steeles/Trafalgar intersection has been included in the PG NHS, but may be removed and compensated for elsewhere for elsewhere following completion of appropriate studies and approval by Conservation Halton and Halton Region. As noted on Figure LU-1, this figure does not accurately reflect the PG NHS. It represents the Future Land Use Plan contemplated at the time the figure was prepared. Drawings E7/E8 more accurately reflects the Premier Gateway Natural Heritage System, as does the Land Use Plan contained in the Phase

1B Secondary Plan adopted by the Town of Halton Hills through Official Plan Amendments No. 31A and 31B.

The removal of the cattail marsh to the northeast of the Steeles/Trafalgar intersection is currently not supported by O.Reg. 162/06 and Conservation Halton policies. This wetland was characterized in more detail and its boundary surveyed in October 2016. If it is to be compensated for, it must be demonstrated that the wetland form and function can be successfully replicated elsewhere in the subject area as an enhancement to the proposed PG NHS. For instance, the feature should be replaced at an area ratio of at least 1:1, as a Cattail marsh, and the water balance of the wetland must be retained from pre to post development. Section 2.5.2 provides more information on this wetland, as well as Appendix E. If it is to be retained in situ, the wetland is to be protected with 30 m buffers, unless identified otherwise during the future Subwatershed Impact Study (SIS). The final HDF classification has identified the HDF in this vicinity (HT-2b-4) as 'conservation'. As such, the management of the wetland and the HDF should be established based upon the integrated function of both features. The downstream connection of the HDF must be maintained.

Watercourses

All watercourses and some HDFs will be protected within the PG NHS. A total of 4 headwater drainage features, which are included in the Regional NHS, have been identified for potential relocation. The HDF in the northeast of the subject area (HT-2b-3) has been shown relocated further to the west, adjacent to the Coulson Tract. This will provide enhancement to the Coulson Tract, as well as increased benefit to the relocated HDF, as it will be contiguous with other habitats. The watercourses and HDFs are located within a minimum 60m wide corridor, where a 30m buffer has been provided on either side of the water feature. Where the meander belt assessment has identified a greater corridor (ref. Section 4.2.1), the PG NHS should be widened as required as part of future studies to incorporate the full meander belt, factor of safety, and erosion allowance. This will ensure protection of the feature, as well as fish communities. Where water feature based corridors are proposed for relocation, they should be moved to an area contiguous with other natural features, to provide overall benefit to the natural heritage feature and the wildlife that use and inhabit them.

Species at Risk

Several Species at Risk were noted within the subject area. Endangered and Threatened species in Ontario are protected by the Endangered Species Act (ESA). These include Barn Swallow, Bobolink, and Eastern Meadowlark. The latter of these species may be nesting within the subject lands and nest surveys should be completed during the SIS stage. ESA regulations must be followed in regards to this species, as well as all other Species at Risk that are found within the subject lands at the time of development. Other species may include: Butternut, Little Brown Myotis, and Northern Myotis. Site specific surveys, to be completed as part of future studies, will provide more detailed information to verify the chacterization presented in this Scoped Subwatershed Study, and to establish management alternatives accordingly.

Significant Wildlife Habitat

Where Significant Wildlife Habitat was identified, it was included in the Premier Gateway NHS, which meant that some areas were expanded from the Regional NHS. The Amphibian Breeding Habitat (Woodland) that was identified south of Coulson Tract was removed and compensated for immediately south of Coulson Tract in cooperation with the Region of Halton and Conservation Halton.

Premier Gateway NHS

Overall, the proposed Premier Gateway NHS includes additional lands beyond identified natural heritage features and their buffers, that provide additional enhancement to the system. These enhancements provide for increased ecological services such as wildlife habitat and movement opportunities, increased buffering to natural heritage features, and restoration opportunities such as additional vegetation plantings. Buffer management plans are to be developed at the detailed design stage and may include the following: native species plantings, soil improvements, and habitat creation (e.g. pollinator habitat, hibernacula, nesting areas). Buffer widths may be refined at the SIS stage.

Buffers from natural heritage features have been included within the development of the Premier Gateway NHS, so additional buffers are not required. The exception to this is permitting requirements for any Endangered or Threatened species that may be applicable at the time of development.

Road Crossings

Hornby Road and Trafalgar Road currently bisect the study area. The Preferred Land Use Concept shows 3 additional roads within the study area. The proposed roads have been aligned to avoid the Premier Gateway NHS, but would cross it in several locations, mostly across watercourses. To minimize impact, the road crossings have been aligned to be perpendicular to the watercourse. The crossing opening will be sized at a later stage, but should consider wildlife movement. The crossings should be wide enough to allow some terrestrial movement of small to medium sized mammals, such as Raccoon and Fox. This will also allow for the movement of amphibians and reptiles.

The north-south road proposed to connect Hornby Road from the proposed roundabout to Sixth Line south of Steeles Avenue will be located slightly within the Greenbelt. The new road will be a minimum of 30 m from the watercourse. The Greenbelt Plan (Government of Ontario 2017) allows for the development of infrastructure within the Greenbelt, however impacts should be minimized. This proposed road will be subject to an Environmental Assessment. The current land use within the Greenbelt where the road is proposed is a private residence and farm, beside pasture land for horses; no natural heritage feature will be directly impacted within the Greenbelt with the alignment of the proposed road.

Stormwater Management

As per Section 4.1.2, the recommended stormwater management sizing criteria for the Premier Gateway Lands will control post-development flows to pre-development levels at key locations. As well, the recommended stormwater management criteria will mitigate the increased erosion potential along the receiving watercourses to within acceptable levels, and will provide stormwater quality control to an Enhanced standard of treatment.

Mitigation Measures

The following provides a list of mitigation measures to avoid impact and should be implemented during the development of the subject area.

The Endangered Species Act protects Endangered and Threatened species. Where Barn Swallow nests or foraging habitat is to be removed, the permitting process must be started with the MNRF. Nests are to be replaced through a new nesting structure. Removal of barns, houses, or individual trees may need to be surveyed for SAR bats or bat maternity roosts. This should be done in consultation with the MNRF. Where tree removal is to occur, agencies must also be consulted with regards to the potential for bat maternity roost SWH.

The Migratory Birds Convention Act protects migratory birds, their eggs and nests from being harmed or destroyed. It is recommended that any tree removal and vegetation clearing (including grading) be undertaken prior to May 1 or following August 31. Should vegetation clearing have to occur within this time, a nest search must be completed by a qualified biologist within 48 hours of the clearing to assess whether or not any nests are located in the area. Clearing cannot be done if an active nest is present.

Potential indirect impacts to wildlife may arise from noise and dust associated with construction activities and unnatural lighting resulting from the development. Noise associated with construction will be temporary, therefore significant effects on wildlife from noise are not expected.

Wildlife-vehicle collisions are a risk across roads and must be minimized. Mitigation measures include strategically enabling (e.g. crossing structures) or discouraging (e.g. exclusion fencing) wildlife crossings along roads.

Bird-window collisions should be minimized and building design elements should be considered and implemented through the subsequent planning process to mitigate bird collisions.

During construction activities such as clearing and grubbing, dust can lead to changes in vegetation due to increased heat absorption and decreased transpiration; adverse effects in wildlife due to high levels of sedimentation and visual impacts. In order to suppress dust, areas of bare soil should be moistened with water during construction activities to ensure that the amount of dust within the subject area is reduced. Topsoil stockpile locations should be in areas of lesser wind exposure and away from natural features. Erosion and sediment control measures

should be put in place and maintained in good repair. Areas of bare soil should be seeded to reduce erosion.

Detailed lighting designs should include directional lighting for all areas of road and developments that are within 30m of the natural features to eliminate lightwash. It is recommended that guidelines from the International Dark Sky Association be considered.

It is recommended that a trail system be established to allow people access and use of the Premier Gateway NHS. The trail system should be constructed at the start of development, to give people immediate access, and discourage the establishment of footpaths. Proposed trail alignments should be developed in consultation with all agencies and the trail location should be staked in the field with all agencies present. Preference will be given for trail alignment outside of the Conservation Halton Regulation Limit whenever possible. Proposed alignments within the Regulation Limit must conform with Conservation Halton policies and will require a permit from the Authority. Proposed trail siting in proximity to the Premier Gateway NHS will be requested to be aligned closer to the development area and away from the key features.

Fencing should also be considered at the edge of the Premier Gateway NHS to keep people and pets outside of sensitive areas. Specific fencing locations should be determined at the detailed design stage. Existing disturbances within natural heritage features, such as debris piles, should be removed. If possible, a plan for invasive species control should be prepared and implemented.

Areas within the Premier Gateway NHS that are currently not natural (e.g. agricultural areas, golf course) should be naturalized and planted with native, non-invasive species. Milkweed species (*Asclepias* sp.) should be included in seeding mixes to provide habitat of Monarch. Other species, beneficial to pollinators, should be planted as well. It is recommended that planting and seeding plans be established at detailed design stages.

Construction and Design Related Mitigation Recommendations

The following recommendations are general in nature but are standard mitigation measures for development and construction. The following recommendations are provided to ensure that any potential impacts are minimized:

- Individual trees (e.g. hedgerows, surrounding residences) should be maintained and protected where possible. Where trees in fair to excellent condition have to be removed, these should be compensated for. Compensation plans are to be developed at the detailed design stage.
- No storage of equipment, materials or fill is to occur within the natural areas or their buffers.
- Maintenance of machinery during construction should occur at a designated location away from the proposed Premier Gateway NHS.
- Sediment and erosion control measures must be installed prior to, and maintained during construction. Areas of bare soil should be re-vegetated as soon as feasible to prevent erosion of soils (within 30 days of inactivity).

- During the installation of the construction limit fencing, any hazard trees should be identified by a Certified Arborist or qualified other and removed or pruned as warranted. Cavity trees may have to be surveyed for SAR bats prior to any removal. This should be done in consultation with the MNRF.
- Any areas of bare soil that arise should be graded and re-vegetated as soon as possible to avoid gullying and erosion. A suitable native seed mix is to be applied to all exposed areas of soil that are immediately adjacent to the natural areas.
- Planting of native tree and shrub species on currently un-vegetated portions of the site is recommended to enhance site conditions. Natural succession and plantings can be used to create native vegetation zones around retained natural heritage features.
- ▶ Litter and debris should be removed from the construction areas on an ongoing basis.

Monitoring Recommendations

(1) Prior to Construction

On-site inspections of the sediment and erosion control measures, as well as tree protection measures prior to construction.

(2) During Construction

- Regular monitoring of sediment and erosion control measures, as well as tree protection fencing to ensure maintenance and effectiveness.
- > Pruning of any limbs or roots (of trees to be retained) disrupted during construction.
- ▶ Maintenance of Premier Gateway NHS.
- ▶ Monitoring of groundwater levels and baseflow during dewatering activities.
- Ensure other mitigation measures are adhered to, such as fuelling of machinery at designated locations away from woodlands, wetlands, and watercourses; storage of machinery and material, fill, etc. in designated areas; and equipment movement through natural areas and setbacks to be controlled.

(3) Subsequent to Construction

Buffer, restoration, and compensation plantings should be monitored after installation. Following planting, it is recommended that the plantings be inspected to ensure that the correct species and number of plants were planted in accordance with the approved planting plan. Two years after planting, the plantings should be inspected again to ensure a good survival rate. Any specimens not healthy in vigorous growing condition should be replaced at that time. To increase survival, it is recommended that new plantings be maintained through watering during the first two years after installation. Tree staking is to be removed two years after installation.

5.0 RECOMMENDED ENVIRONMENTAL AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

5.1 Stormwater Management

The recommended stormwater management plan has been developed based upon the principles provided in Section 4.1.4, and the sizing criteria presented in Section 4.1.2. The recommended stormwater management plan is presented in Drawing WR-4, and the preliminary sizing of the stormwater management facilities for erosion and flood control is presented in Table 5.1.1.

Table 5.1.1 Summary of Stormwater Quantity Management Peak Flow and Storage Requirements										
Facility	Drainage	Preliminary Impervious Area	Extended Detention		Flood Control ²					
					25 Year ^{1.}		100 Year		Regional	
Reference #	(ha)	(ha)	Storage	Discharge	Storage	Discharge	Storage	Discharge	Storage	Discharge
	(na)		(m³)	(m ³ /s)	(m³)	(m ³ /s)	(m³)	(m ³ /s)	(m ³)	(m³/s)
West Branch (Subcatchment 241)										
668	5.84	0.46	1,197	0.004	2,873	0.07	4,789	0.17	9,578	0.59
671	3.05	0.24	686	0.002	1,647	0.04	2,745	0.09	5,490	0.31
West Branch Tributary (Subcatchment 242)										
672	14.05	0.42	3,161	0.009	7,587	0.17	20,232	0.20	40,464	6.39
676	34.39	1.03	6,620	0.023	15,888	0.41	42,368	0.49	84,737	15.63
East Branch Tributary (Subcatchment 245) ³										
646	22.59	1.25	4,010	0.015	9,623	0.27	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
675	4.20	0.23	945	0.003	2,268	0.05	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
678	26.93	1.49	2,693	0.018	6,463	0.32	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
677	4.47	0.25	1,006	0.003	2,414	0.05	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Hornby Tributary (Subcatchment 255)										
679	18.23	2.35	2,962	0.012	7,110	0.22	11,850	0.52	23,699	1.84
681	13.63	1.76	3,135	0.009	7,524	0.16	12,540	0.39	25,079	1.38
680	6.44	0.83	1,449	0.004	3,478	0.08	5,796	0.18	11,592	0.65
682	34.44	4.44	7,491	0.023	17,978	0.41	29,963	0.96	59,926	3.48
683	31.91	4.11	7,180	0.022	17,231	0.38	28,719	0.89	57,438	3.22

Notes: 1 Corresponds only approximately to return period flow rates/storage.

2. Emergency overflow to be provided above maximum required storage condition.

3. No quantity control required for 100 year and Regional Storm events.

Key components of the recommended stormwater management plan are as follows:

- Wet ponds are recommended to address requirements for water quality, erosion control, and flood control.
- The locations of stormwater management facilities are to be provided as shown, in order to maintain the supply of runoff to receiving systems, and to minimize requirements for operation and maintenance by the Town.
- Low Impact Development Best Management Practices (LID BMP's) are recommended throughout the future development in order to manage water budget and maintain groundwater recharge. The type and location of LID BMP's are to be established as part of future studies in consultation with Town & Conservation Halton staff. At the suggestion of Conservation Halton, more incorporation of "better site design techniques" should be considered, including the following:
 - Preserving natural areas and natural area conservation;
 - o Site reforestation;
 - Stream and shoreline buffers;
 - Open space design;
 - Disconnecting and distributing runoff;
 - Disconnection of surface impervious cover;
 - Rooftop disconnection;
 - Stormwater/ absorbent landscaping;
 - Reducing impervious cover in site design including:
 - Narrower streets
 - Slimmer sidewalks
 - Smaller cul-de-sacs
 - Shorter driveways
 - Smaller parking lots

Based on the existing known range of Silver Shiner, which is to Derry Road in the Middle Sixteen Mile Creek, MNRF (pers. comm. between Bohdan Kowalyk and Conservation Halton, March 6, 2018) has indicated that stormwater entering this reach of Sixteen Mile Creek from the Premier Gateway SWS would need to work toward achieving an effluent discharge temperature below 24°C.

Clay plugs and anti-seepage collars could be utilized to prevent preferential flow along infrastructure backfilled material.

Dewatering to implement servicing may be necessary and the volume and length of time of the dewatering may vary. A dewatering water management plan may be necessary to address local lowering of the water table and appropriate discharge of water. For dewatering volumes greater than 50,000 l/day at Permit to Take Water will be required from the MOECC

Groundwater management generally focuses on adjusting the deficiencies in the water balance resulting from increased impervious surfaces and soil compaction as discussed above.

The extent of groundwater management is consequently dependent on the characteristics of the groundwater flow system including:

- ► The ability of the stratigraphic units to infiltrate and transmit water.
- The ecological connection of the stratigraphic units to any local wetlands, watercourses or underlying aquifers.
- ▶ The need to meet stormwater management requirements.

The ability of the stratigraphic units to infiltrate or transmit water will be dependent on the sand, silt and clay content. As previously presented through water well records the majority of the shallow overburden typically consists of silty clay. The site specific characteristics will need to be confirmed through additional drilling, test pits and infiltration tests.

Employing various LID BMPs will aid in promoting infiltration, maintaining recharge and reducing runoff, as well as maintaining groundwater levels and related groundwater discharge.

Permanent groundwater control relating to buildings commonly utilizes perimeter drains and underdrains which may then be directed to a dedicated foundation drain collection (FDC) system and discharged to local watercourses. The amount of water collected and the extent of groundwater drawdown varies with depth and the size of the collection system and the local hydrostratigraphy.

Management of the post development groundwater system includes practices which attempt to maintain groundwater levels and practices which are employed to reduce local groundwater levels. Additionally, water and waste water infrastructure can potentially leak or infiltrate groundwater depending on the conditions. It is important to note the potential interconnection of the various water management practices. Practices which are promoting local infiltration to maintain recharge or reduce overland flow may be increasing groundwater levels and groundwater flow which may potentially be intercepted by FDC systems.

5.2 Watercourses and HDFs

Watercourse features and the associated hazard limits (i.e. final meander belt) are protected inplace within the preliminary NHS. From a channel morphology perspective, management considerations are based on the location of development with respect to the final meander belt limit, and for road crossings to be sized appropriately using risk factors outlined in Section 4.2.3. Final corridor setbacks which extend beyond the geomorphic limits (i.e. meander belt) are, in general, sufficiently encompassed by the preliminary NHS, however there are zones of minor discrepancy where the final corridor limit falls beyond the preliminary NHS (ref. Section 4.2.1). The proposed preliminary NHS should be re-evaluated based on hazard delineation refinement as part of future studies.

Despite the watercourse and meander belt being essentially protected from development activities, there are several opportunities for remediation that should be explored during subsequent planning phases. As mentioned in Section 4.2.2, there are some opportunities for remediation that should be explored in subsequent stages of site planning (Table 5.2.1).

Table 5.2.1	Watercourse Management Summary	
Reach	Impact Summary	Recommendations
HT-2b-1	 Proposed crossing at downstream end. Channel and meander belt protected within preliminary NHS 	 Design crossing appropriately based on risk factors. Minimum 3x bankfull width. Note the confluence immediately downstream. Enhance riparian zone and any channel issues associated with existing land use (e.g. farm crossings)
HT-2a-2	 Channel and meander belt protected within preliminary NHS Existing road crossing is undersized and limits natural channel processes. 	 Refer to Trafalgar EA for crossing recommendations
HT-2a-1	 Proposed road alignment along eastern portion of NHS. Channel and meander belt protected within preliminary NHS 	 Avoid road grading within meander belt. Enhance riparian zone and any channel issues associated with existing land use (e.g. farm crossings)
HT-2	 Channel and meander belt protected within preliminary NHS 	 Enhance riparian zone and any channel issues associated with existing land use (e.g. farm crossings)
HT-2b-2 (S3)	 Channel and meander belt protected within preliminary NHS Existing crossing slightly undersized. 	 Enhance riparian zone and any channel issues associated with existing land use (e.g. farm crossings). Refer to Trafalgar EA for crossing recommendations

Table 5.2.1	Watercourse Management Summary	
Reach	Impact Summary	Recommendations
E-T1-4	 Current alignment protected within preliminary NHS, final meander belt and CH setbacks are not. This was based on an empirical method for the MBW delineation. Currently located within golf course 	 Remove culverts and rehabilitate entire length using natural channel design principles. Relocation and rehabilitation will require the determination of a design meander belt.
E-T1-3	 Channel and meander belt protected within preliminary NHS Proposed road alignment along eastern portion of NHS. Proposed road crossing at downstream end of reach. Currently located within the golf course. 	 Avoid road grading within meander belt. Enhance riparian zone and any channel issues associated with existing land use (e.g. golf course structures and crossings) Design crossing appropriately based on risk factors. Minimum 3x bankfull width, or meander amplitude: whichever is more conservative.
E-T1-2	 Channel and meander belt protected within preliminary NHS Proposed road alignment along eastern portion of NHS. 	 Avoid road grading within meander belt. Enhance riparian zone and any channel issues associated with existing land use (e.g. farm crossings, livestock activity)
E-T1-1	 Channel and meander belt protected within preliminary NHS 	 Avoid road grading within meander belt. Enhance riparian zone and any channel issues associated with existing land use (e.g. farm crossings, livestock activity
W-T1-3	 Located outside of study area. No direct impacts. 	No management recommendation
W-T1-2a	 Channel and meander belt protected within preliminary NHS 	 Enhance riparian zone and any channel issues associated with existing land use (e.g. farm crossings, livestock activity)
W-T1-2	 Located outside of the study area. No direct impacts. 	 Can benefit from enhancement of the riparian zone and any channel issues associated with existing land use (e.g. farm crossings, livestock activity)
W-T1-1	 Located outside of the study area. No direct impacts. 	 Can benefit from enhancement of the riparian zone and any channel issues associated with existing land use (e.g. farm crossings, livestock activity)

Section 4.2.2.1 briefly discusses the management recommendations for area HDFs with respect to channel length and realignment. The table found in Appendix D summarizes the HDF assessment and final management recommendations. The TRCA/CVC protocol is designed to determine appropriate management recommendations based the results of the assessment, but site specific issues may lend the assessor to determine a more appropriate recommendation based on the interpretation of overall function and importance of the feature to the drainage system.

Of the eight (8) management recommendations from the protocol, the HDF assessment for the study area resulted in the application of four (4) recommended designations. A description of each of these four recommendations, directly from the protocol are presented below:

Protection - Important Functions: e.g. swamps with amphibian breeding habitat; perennial HDFs; seeps and springs; Species at Risk habitat; permanent fish habitat with woody riparian cover

- Protect and/or enhance the existing feature and its riparian zone corridor, and groundwater discharge or wetland in-situ.
- Maintain hydroperiod.
- Incorporate shallow groundwater and baseflow protection techniques such as infiltration treatment.
- Use natural channel design techniques or wetland design to restore and enhance existing habitat features, if necessary; realignment not generally permitted.
- Design and locate the stormwater management system (e.g. Extended detention outfalls) are to be designed and located to avoid impacts (i.e. Sediment, temperature) to the feature.

Conservation - Valued Functions: e.g. seasonal fish habitat with woody riparian cover; marshes with amphibian breeding habitat; or general amphibian habitat with woody riparian cover.

- Maintain, relocate, and/or enhance drainage feature and its riparian zone corridor.
- If catchment drainage has been previously removed or will be removed due to diversion of stormwater flows, restore lost functions through enhanced lot level controls (i.e. Restore original catchment using clean roof drainage), as feasible.
- Maintain or replace on-site flows using mitigation measures and/or wetland creation, if necessary.
- Maintain or replace external flows.
- Use natural channel design techniques to maintain or enhance overall productivity of the reach.
- Drainage feature must connect to downstream.

Mitigation - Contributing Functions: e.g. contributing fish habitat with meadow vegetation or limited cover

- Replicate or enhance functions through enhanced lot level conveyance measures, such as well-vegetated swales (herbaceous, shrub and tree material) to mimic online wet vegetation pockets, or replicate through constructed wetland features connected to downstream.
- Replicate on-site flow and outlet flows at the top end of system to maintain feature functions with vegetated swales, bioswales, etc. If catchment drainage has been previously removed due to diversion of stormwater flows, restore lost functions through enhanced lot level controls (i.e. restore original catchment using clean roof drainage).

Replicate functions by lot level conveyance measures (e.g. vegetated swales) connected to the natural heritage system, as feasible and/or Low Impact Development stormwater options (refer to Conservation Authority Water Management Guidelines for details).

No Management Required - Limited Functions: e.g. features with no or minimal flow; cropped land or no riparian vegetation; no fish or fish habitat; and no amphibian habitat.

The feature that was identified during desktop pre-screening has been field verified to confirm that no feature and/or functions associated with HDFs are present on the ground and/or there is no connection downstream. These features are generally characterized by lack of flow, evidence of cultivation, furrowing, presence of a seasonal crop, and lack of natural vegetation. No management recommendations required.

Table 5.2.1 summarizes final recommendations, and rationale. Section 4.2.2 and Appendices D-2, D-3, and D-4 provide further detail. Management recommendations to realign and apply natural channel design principles, where appropriate, remain regardless of the designation. Should future studies reclassify these features as watercourse, then the meander belt corridor will need to be delineated as necessary (ref. Section 6.1.1).

5.2.1 Road Crossings and Alignment

Road alignments should be outside the PG Natural Heritage System, other than where a road has to cross the Natural Heritage System. The hazard based approach to geomorphically assessing and designing crossings (Section 4.2.3) should be applied to all new crossings, and any crossing upgrades. Where a risk-based approach is not suitable, the crossing span should be a minimum of 3x the bankfull width. Crossings should be open bottom or embedded to provide a natural bottom comprised of typical substrates in consideration of aquatic habitat and passage. Open bottom culverts are particularly preferred in areas exhibiting a high groundwater table. Open bottom crossings will not impede recharge/discharge to the extent that a closed bottom crossing would. The ability for groundwater to reach the watercourse beneath the crossing has ecological benefit for aquatic invertebrates that may inhabit these segments. Closed bottom culverts should be located beneath a veneer of naturally occurring substrates. In addition, hydraulic structures spanning regulated watercourses should be sized to satisfy current requirements for freeboard and clearance, as well as conveyance of the Regional Storm event peak flow rate and allow for wildlife movement and fish passage.

5.2.2 Erosion Thresholds

Critical discharges determined through the erosion threshold analysis should be applied as SWM targets to mitigate excess erosion downstream of the study area following development and major alteration to site hydrology.

5.3 Natural Heritage

The Premier Gateway Natural Heritage System (Premier Gateway NHS) is a refinement of the Regional Natural Heritage System (RNHS). The RNHS was identified through "Sustainable Halton," a project undertaken by the Region of Halton that included the identification of a Natural Heritage System, which is intended to achieve long term protection of natural heritage features and functions (NSEI 2009). The RNHS developed through this project and identified in the Region's Official Plan (2014) and ROPA 38 (2015) is approximate, and it is recognized that additional studies will refine the boundaries through field verification (see Section 116.1 in ROPA 38).

The areas included in the RNHS include woodlands, wetlands, and watercourses, along with appropriate buffers, linkages, and enhancement areas identified by NSEI (2009) and shown on Map 1G of the Official Plan. Section 115.3 of ROPA 38 (Halton Region 2015a) lists the components of the RNHS as the following:

- ▶ key features, including:
 - significant habitat of Endangered and Threatened species
 - significant wetlands
 - significant coastal wetlands
 - significant woodlands
 - significant valleylands
 - o significant wildlife habitat
 - o significant Areas of Natural and Scientific Interest
 - o fish habitat enhancements to key features, including Centres for Biodiversity
- linkages
- ▶ buffers
- watercourses
- wetlands

Key features and NHS components are shown on Drawing E8. Sustainable Halton (NSEI 2009) established 30m buffers from all features, which is consistent with Greenbelt buffers and what some other municipalities are promoting. These buffers have been shown on Drawings E7 and E8, other than adjacent to existing development (e.g. roads). Buffers may be refined at the SIS stage, using the Region's Buffer Framework.

The Premier Gateway NHS was developed based on the RNHS. It was refined based on site specific study. All natural heritage features identified through the characterization process of the project have been included within the Premier Gateway NHS. A total of 4 headwater drainage features, which are included in the RNHS, have been identified for potential relocation. Significant Wildlife Habitat has been included in the Premier Gateway NHS, thereby increasing the overall size of the system.

The Premier Gateway NHS connects to the Greenbelt. The revised Greenbelt Plan (2017) added Urban River Valley Corridors to the Greenbelt as 120+m wide corridors, centered on a

watercourse (60m from each side of the water's edge). An Urban River Valley Corridor has been identified immediately south of the study area, centered on Middle Sixteen Mile Creek, connecting two (2) Greenbelt areas. The existing Sixth Line runs directly through this corridor.

The following management objectives are recommended for each NHS feature and component, along with recommended targets:

Habitat of Endangered and Threatened species

Protect habitat of Endangered and Threatened species in accordance with provincial policy. Ensure Endangered and Threatened species are able to thrive in the NHS. Targets:

▶ Retain currently occurring Endangered and Threatened species within the subject area.

Regionally significant wetlands

Protect regionally significant wetlands and their functions. Manage for invasive species as necessary, especially Phragmites.

- Targets:
 - No net loss of wetlands.
 - Reduce invasive species in wetlands.

Significant woodlands

Protect woodlands and their functions. Restore woodlands to a natural state or improved state where necessary. Restrict access to woodlands; remove unofficial trails; remove debris; manage for invasive species; manage for hazard trees where necessary; and provide educational signage along authorized trails.

Targets:

- ▶ No net loss of woodlands.
- ► Naturalize woodlands.

Significant wildlife habitat

Protect significant wildlife habitat, ensuring sufficient habitat and movement corridors between habitats.

Targets:

- No net loss of significant wildlife habitat.
- ▶ Retain species currently occurring within subject area.

Watercourses

Protect watercourses, providing a corridor in which they may move naturally. Restore and naturalize impacted reaches. Protect fish habitat and fish populations, ensuring no net loss in productive capacity. Follow best management practices for road crossings (ref. Section 5.2.1) for

both watercourses and headwater drainage features, including any realigned headwater drainage features.

Targets:

- Achieve Ministry of the Environment & Climate Change (MOECC) "enhanced" level of SWM protection (80% Total Suspended Solids (TSS) Removal) for all reaches.
- ▶ No increase in phosphorus loading.
- ► Daily maximum mid-summer water temperature target of 18°C in cold water streams.
- ▶ Maintain and enhance existing riparian vegetation associated with watercourses.
- Where headwater drainage features or watercourses are modified, restore riparian zones with native plantings and habitat features for wildlife.
- Develop approaches to maximize infiltration using best efforts and best available technology.
- Maintain or increase fish biodiversity.

Enhancements areas

Enhancement areas are to be naturalized through plantings of native species and creation of wildlife habitats. They are to be maintained in a natural state and protected as natural heritage features in the future.

Targets:

- Naturalize enhancement lands through plantings and placement of habitat features.
- Manage for invasive species.
- ▶ Remove debris, ad hoc trails, and other non-natural features.

Linkages

Linkages are movement corridors comprised of various natural heritage features, allowing wildlife to move through the landscape. These should be managed in accordance with the natural heritage features, as well as ensuring free movement of species to the extent possible. Where no natural heritage feature exists, or the lands are not naturalized, these should be restored and naturalized. Maximize linkage width and minimize road crossings. Where road crossings are necessary, wildlife movement should be considered, following best management practices such as minimizing road width, installing appropriately sized wildlife culverts, and signage.

Targets:

- Minimize discontinuities in linkages (especially >20 m).
- ▶ Linkages to be at least 60 m wide; 100 m width is preferable.
- ▶ Allow for linkages to habitats or other linkages located outside the subject area.

Buffers

Buffers are mitigation measures that are to protect the natural heritage feature they surround. The buffers are to be naturalized and planted. As such, they should provide protection and enhancement to the natural features and become part of the feature as plantings mature. Where existing development abuts a natural feature and restricts the width of the buffer, landowners should be encouraged to naturalize these areas as much as possible. Use of these areas should be limited. No new buildings of any kind should be allowed in these areas, including new houses or additions, workshops, garages, or sheds. Targets:

► Establish appropriate feature-specific buffers for protection of natural habitats.

6.0 **REQUIREMENTS FOR FUTURE STUDIES**

6.1 Subwatershed Impact Studies

Subwatershed Impact Studies (SIS) represent an intermediate level of study, which is required in areas where multiple land ownership within the subwatershed occurs. This level of study would focus on integrating the servicing, transportation, stormwater, and environmental management of adjacent development to a greater level of detail than is normally achieved through the Secondary Plan and Scoped Subwatershed Study; the detailed site specific work may identify additional features/functions which were not captured as part of the Scoped Subwatershed Study, which should be evaluated using the same criteria as established in the Scoped Subwatershed Study. The objectives of this level of study are to:

- Update the characterization of features that are recommended to be integrated in the NHS.
- Refine the natural heritage and natural hazard limits reflecting the NHS objectives and other intentions of the subwatershed study (i.e. final staking of Natural Heritage System features and buffers, calculation of riparian storage volumes, etc.)
- ▶ Refine buffer widths within the subject lands based on the Region's Buffer Framework
- ► Confirm watercourse constraint ranking and HDF classification
- Determine preferred servicing plan
- Determine road layout
- Determine trail alignment
- ▶ Refine impervious coverages, in consultation with the Town & CH
- Develop and define integration of stormwater management facilities
- ► Define phasing in areas of multiple ownership
- Define cost sharing for monitoring programs
- ▶ Refine meander belt width delineation, hazard setbacks and regulatory setbacks
 - Undertake stable top of slope investigations at confined areas (ref. Figure D-4-1, Appendix D), verify with geotechnical support as required
- Redefine limits of NHS with respect to updated watercourse corridor widths and relocated HDFs
- Document the location and nature of sediment sources
- Evaluate cumulative impacts of headwater drainage feature removal (i.e. "no management" features) in the context of channel evolution models for downstream reaches
- Develop further characterization of groundwater resources associated protection measures, and mitigation techniques
- Verify that the water budget would be appropriately managed through the proposed development and stormwater management plan
- Determine detailed road alignment and configuration of watercourse and valley crossings, as well as road crossings of HDFs and Enhancement Areas
- Identification and field staking of significant NHS features in consultation with Town, Region, and Conservation Halton

- Prescribe site specific standards and preliminary design for landscaping, implementation and management of corridors, wetland creation areas, buffers, and restoration areas
- Develop strategies to enable construction phasing while allowing rescue of biota from small isolated habitats, and maintenance of the NHS resources and functioning through the construction period.
- Develop use of LID measures.
- Preliminary analysis of stream corridor dimensions required to maintain pre-development riparian strategy.

Pre-consultation with the Town, Region, and Conservation Halton is recommended to develop Terms of Reference for Subwatershed Impact Studies.

Comments provided by Conservation Halton note that the existing Hornby Glen Golf Course maintains a Permit-to-Take-Water (PTTW). The requirements of the PTTW should be considered in establishing a SWM strategy where diversions are proposed in this area.

The SIS are to characterize the fish community and aquatic invertebrate community within the watercourses and HDFs, to provide an update to surface water quality. Fish community sampling within the Middle Sixteen Mile Creek and its tributaries must use the appropriate protocol to determine the extent of area where Silver Shiner may be present. Knowledge of the current range of Silver Shiner in the vicinity of the study area is important with respect to baseline and post construction monitoring. This sampling may need to be conducted by MNRF, Conservation Halton, DFO, or by the proponents.

In addition to the above, Conservation Halton recommends a site visit may be warranted as part of the future SISs with MNRF and Conservation Halton staff regarding the extent of occupied Redside Dace habitat in the West Branch of Sixteen Mile Creek. Based on the outcome of this site visit, meander belt calculations for the section of the West Branch of Sixteen Mile Creek may be warranted to ensure that appropriate setbacks from the Premier Gateway Scoped Subwatershed study area are established.

At the SIS stage, wetland delineation with Conservation Halton and other agency staff will be required to confirm the boundaries of each of the wetland units within the subject area. Featurebased water balance assessments are also required for specific wetlands, HDF, and watercourses that may be significantly impacted through development.

Anuran surveys are required at the wetland to the northeast of the Steeles and Trafalgar intersection.

Turtle nesting surveys are required in the golf course.

SAR inventories are to be conducted at the SIS stage. If any SAR are present, they are to be addressed through permitting with the MNRF.

A certified arborist should inspect the Honey Locust (Gleditsia triacanthos var) trees reported from the FOD7-3 community to determine whether or not they are of the native or non-native variety. Management recommendations and refined buffers at the SIS stage should consider the outcome of those investigations.

The SIS must consider adjacent lands (120m) to the subject area.

Spatial data relating to the PG Natural Heritage System will be provided to the reviewing agencies at the conclusion of each SIS, which is to include Key Features, Linkages, Buffers, and Enhancement Areas.

The extent of future groundwater studies will depend in part on the extent of development and depth of infrastructure. Additional site specific hydrogeological characterizations will need to be carried out to determine baseline conditions and refine the following:

- ► The surficial soils and deeper hydrostratigraphy
- ► The seasonal water table and local horizontal and vertical hydraulic gradients
- Infiltration rates
- ► The hydraulic conductivity of the various hydrostratigraphic units
- Reach specific flows and potential groundwater discharge utilizing spot baseflow measurements and reach specific drivepoint piezometers
- A detailed investigation of the tile drain locations and relationship to groundwater levels and potential discharge
- Recharge function and recharge response to precipitation events (utilization of dataloggers)
- ► The need for a Feature Based Water Balance (in consultation with Conservation Halton)
- Existing data related to the current Permit to Take Water for the Hornby Golf Course should be incorporated into the site specific hydrogeologic characterization

As described in Section 4.1.3 "Infrastructure construction may encounter more extreme hydraulic conditions which have the potential for significant upward gradients, for transmittal of large quantities of groundwater and the potential for significant groundwater level reductions during dewatering. The depth of this hydraulically confined system may vary across the site and depth and local hydraulic characteristics need to be confirmed." This characterization needs to be confirmed through the installation of multi-level piezometers prior to any infrastructure construction.

6.2 Functional Servicing Studies

Functional Servicing Reports are typically prepared as part of the detailed site design process, in order to identify the manner in which water, sanitary, and storm servicing is to be provided for the site. The information provided within these documents generally includes, but is not limited to:

- ► Location and preliminary sizing of sanitary sewers.
- Location and preliminary sizing of storm sewers.
- ► Location and preliminary sizing of watermains.
- Preliminary site grading plan.
- ▶ Location and preliminary sizing of stormwater management facilities.
- ▶ Location and preliminary sizing of hydraulic structures (i.e. bridges and culverts).
- ▶ Preliminary channel grading plans and supporting analyses.
- ► Assessment of riparian storage for existing channel and preliminary channel designs.

Current practice by Conservation Halton also requires that these studies include an assessment of the impacts of the proposed servicing for the site, specifically related to potential impacts to groundwater systems and recommended mitigation strategies.

6.3 Stormwater Management Plans

Requirements for Stormwater Management Plans are outlined within the Stormwater Management Best Management Practices Guidelines (MOE, March 2003). Stormwater Management Plans are prepared in support of individual development applications and build upon guidance from higher level studies such as the SWS and SIS. The stormwater management plans complement the planning process associated with Draft Plans of Subdivision or individual Site Plans. Stormwater management reporting associated with this planning stage would be the "Functional Design" plan. Subsequently, in support of final subdivision design, a "Detailed Design" plan is prepared.

6.3.1 Functional Design

This level of design typically involves demonstrating the feasibility of providing stormwater management for a particular development. In areas where no Subwatershed Plan has been completed, the Stormwater Management Plan will be required to address additional issues such as environmental baseline conditions and screening of various stormwater management strategies and techniques. For the Premier Gateway Lands, the intent of the Functional Design Stormwater Management Plan would focus on demonstrating compatibility and compliance with principles and requirements prescribed in the Scoped Subwatershed Study, as well as the specifics emanating from the Subwatershed Impact Study. This includes identifying specific stormwater management infrastructure which is to be implemented for the proposed development (i.e. type of LID BMP's, end-of-pipe facilities, thermal mitigation techniques such as cooling trenches and bottom draws, etc.).

Comments provided by Conservation Halton note that the existing Hornby Glen Golf Course maintains a Permit-to-Take-Water (PTTW). The requirements of the PTTW should be considered in establishing a SWM strategy where diversions are proposed in this area.

6.3.2 Detailed Design

The detailed design submission is required to demonstrate how the required information, outlined in the Functional Design report, has been integrated, providing further details on the proposed stormwater management system (i.e. details related to minor system design details, landscaping, safety, and maintenance aspects of Stormwater Management Facility design), as well as outlining subsequent specific monitoring requirements.

6.4 Natural Channel Design Briefs

Natural Channel Design Briefs are prepared in support of any proposed realignment, alteration, or enhancement to a regulated open watercourse. These reports would provide the following information, specifically related to the detailed design of any proposed realignment, alteration, or enhancement to regulated watercourses.

- Details related to the natural channel design principles applied to the detailed design of the watercourse.
- ► Fluvial geomorphological analysis of the proposed watercourse design.
- ▶ Rationale for selection of plantings within the riparian zone and floodplain.
- > Details regarding any enhancements proposed within the adjacent watercourse.
- Detailed hydrologic and hydraulic analyses of proposed watercourse and hydraulic structures to demonstrate impacts to floodplains, and freeboard under proposed conditions, maintenance of riparian storage post-development.
- Detailed assessment of impacts of proposed watercourse to aquatic habitat and fish species.
- ▶ Detailed design drainage for proposed watercourse and corridor.

6.5 Monitoring and Adaptive Management Plans

Monitoring and Adaptive Management Plans are generally developed as part of Subwatershed Impact Studies. The information collected as part of these plans is intended to verify the performance of the environmental and stormwater management system advanced in the Subwatershed Impact Study, as well as to provide guidance for potential modifications to the management plan to satisfy the objectives of the Scoped Subwatershed Study. Additional details regarding various components of the monitoring and adaptive management plan are provided below.

6.5.1 Surface Water Quantity

Surface water monitoring should include collection of local stream flow and rainfall data. The selection of the appropriate gauge site should be completed in consultation with Conservation Halton and Town of Halton Hills staff.

Each stormwater management facility identified in the Subwatershed Impact Study should be monitored for inflow and outflow and temperature. Given that the inlet and outlet control structures are generally well documented with well defined hydraulic rating curves, continuous level recording devices would be considered appropriate. Regular inspection of the inlets and outlets should be completed to ensure that they are free of debris and sediment, hence functioning in accordance with theory. As a minimum, inspections should be completed every 2 weeks and following major storms for the first two years of operation. Any problems should be rectified by the consultant or reported to the Town for rectification, if special equipment is required. The gauges should be installed from April 1 to November 30 and be capable of providing data in a minimum of 5 minute increments. All data should be collected in digital format and processed into a tabular inlet/outlet hydrograph form.

Depending on the results of the first year of monitoring, consideration should be given to monitoring the performance of the facilities year round (i.e. inclusive of the December 1 to March 31 period).

6.5.2 Surface Water Quality and Temperature

Surface Water Chemistry

Chemical sampling using grab sampling should be completed to characterize and verify the stormwater quality management system. Instream monitoring to establish pre-development (i.e. baseline) conditions should be completed for two years prior to development; the location of instream water quality monitoring should be determined in consultation with Conservation Halton and Town staff.

Water chemistry monitoring of post-developed conditions should be completed for a minimum of three years post development, and should include monitoring of the inlet and outlet of each stormwater management facility after construction as well as online the receiving watercourse at the same location identified for pre-development monitoring.

Grab sampling is recommended for collecting water quality samples from each site for the monitoring program. Each site should have 3 events sampled per year, typically representative of an average spring, summer and fall event (rainfall event volumes of over 15 mm depth are preferable).

The following parameters are recommended for monitoring surface water chemistry and water quality:

The parameters to sample for includes:

- Oil and Grease
- Total Phosphorus
- Anions (Nitrate, Nitrite, Phosphate, Chloride)
- Ammonia
- ► Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen (TKN)
- Conductivity
- Total Solids (TS)
- ► Total Suspended Solids (TSS)

- ► BOD5
- Dissolved Oxygen
- ▶ pH/alkalinity
- Salinity
- Total Coliforms
- Faecal Coliforms
- ► PAH
- Metals (Al, Sb, As, Ba, Be, B, Cd, Ca, Cr, Co, Cu, Fe, Pb, Mg, Mn, Mo, Ni, P, K, Se, Si, Ag, Na, Sr, Tl, Sn, Ti, W, U, V, Zn, Zr).

Surface Water Temperature

Continuous temperature gauges should be installed from June 1 to September 30 at the outlet from all facilities and both upstream and downstream of the facility outlets, to monitor the effectiveness of measures to cool the effluent and the impact on stream temperature. Locations for online monitoring of water temperature should be determined in consultation with Conservation Halton and Town staff.

6.5.3 Groundwater

A select number of future monitoring wells should be maintained and monitored for seasonal groundwater levels to assess the overall trend of the study area development on the local groundwater levels and correlated with precipitation records. It would be expected that the groundwater level data be collected prior to construction, during construction and for a period of 5 years beyond build out and then assessed to determine if static trends have been realized. Spot baseflow measurements at select locations, as recommended through the more detailed studies, should be carried out as well for a time period consistent with the groundwater level monitoring.

Comments provided by Conservation Halton note that the existing Hornby Glen Golf Course operates a stream flow gauge monitoring low flow within the East Branch, allowing the golf course to draw from the stream above a specific target flow. The stream flow gauge data should be reviewed as part of a future study and considered when developing recommendations of SWM technologies.

6.5.4 Stream Morphology

The collection of field data from similar sites over an extended period of time can provide great insight on channel processes and function. This monitoring can also yield information regarding the response of channel to changes in upstream land use. Typically, a land use change will result in some alteration in the hydrologic regime (increased flow volumes) and sediment regime (initially more sediment being supplied to the channel followed by an overall decrease in loadings). These alterations can result in changes in the channel planform, bank erosion, cross-sectional area and substrate composition which, in turn, may locally affect aquatic habitat and water quality.

From a geomorphic perspective, while geomorphic monitoring stations were established during Phase 1, additional monitoring control points and pre-construction baseline surveys should be established within 2-3 years prior to land alteration. Preferably these should be installed within

the relevant or sensitive reaches prior to stormwater being released within the system. Monitoring would subsequently take place annually during- and post-construction to fulfill performance evaluation requirements. The post-construction monitoring period should extend for 5-years following completed build-out. Specifically, the following steps should be taken to monitor for development impacts:

Control Cross-sections – Are to be monitored twice annually. Once following the spring freshet, and again in the fall. An additional site visit should be conducted at each site following a peak storm in excess of the 5-year storm event for the system.

Substrate Composition – A modified Wolman pebble count should be conducted at each control cross-section on an annual basis, the results of which will be tabulated in a particle size distribution chart. An additional site visit will be conducted at each site following a peak storm in excess of the 5-year storm event for the system. Due to the dynamic nature of substrate composition, no action will be taken until Year 5 unless the adjustment is identified as a potential risk to the function of the channel by a qualified geomorphologist.

Lateral Migration – A series of erosion pins installed in areas of active bank migration as well as areas of anticipated migration should be measured during each monitoring visit to determine rates of bank adjustment. An additional site visit will be conducted at each site following a peak storm in excess of the 5-year storm event for the system.

Photographic Record – Photographs from a known vantage point should be used to document general geomorphic site conditions on an annual basis. An additional site visit will be conducted at each site following a peak storm in excess of the 5-year storm event for the system. These photographs will be used as supplemental information to inform decisions regarding the need for mitigation.

Analysis of ongoing monitoring may be used for adaptive management of the study area, however, mitigation should only be applied following an investigation into the causes. The exception being major adjustment requiring immediate works where risk to property, human safety, or infrastructure is imminent. Mitigation measures would be recommended based on the extent and source of the issue. Table 6.5.1 summarizes monitoring parameters and example indicator thresholds for investigation.

Indicator targets should be developed appropriately based on existing/baseline conditions for each site. These targets and methods should be supported by a professional qualified to practice fluvial geomorphology.

Table 6.5.1 Summary of Fluvial Geomorphology Monitoring Targets (Example)				
Monitoring Parameter	Indicator Monitoring Threshold*			
Bankfull cross-sectional area (m ²)	Maintain bankfull cross-sectional area within 30% of existing conditions			
Mean bankfull channel depth	Maintain bankfull depth within 30% of existing conditions			
Bank migration rates (cm/yr)	Normal migration rates ~ 2% of bankfull width per year where migration is expected (i.e., cutbanks). As rates may vary due to extreme flood events; evaluate migration over the longer term (e.g., 3-5 years).			
Substrate distribution, D ₅₀ and D ₉₀	Maintain D50 and D90 particle sizes within plus or minus one order of magnitude of existing conditions. As sizes may vary due to extreme flood events; evaluate substrate trends over the longer term (e.g., 3-5 years).			

Note: * Threshold exceedances, if documented, will require an interpretation of site conditions and trends by a qualified Professional Geomorphologist to explore if any adaptive management or remediation recommendations are appropriate.

This monitoring could be undertaken by a variety of parties including the Town of Halton Hills, Halton Region, and Conservation Halton. However, a fluvial geomorphologist should be used to interpret the findings and assess whether substantial change has occurred. The geomorphologist should also be able to link any change with the causative factors and processes.

6.5.5 Natural Environment

Baseline, during construction, and post construction monitoring is required by Conservation Halton (Howatt, pers. comm. 2017), including the following:

- Vegetation
- Invasive plant species
- Mammals
- Amphibians
- Reptiles
- Breeding birds
- Butterflies
- Odonates
- Benthic macroinvertebrates
- ▶ Fish
- Buffer function

Monitoring locations should be chosen based on an ecological consideration of development layout, types, and phasing. The selection of monitoring locations should be based on subcatchments and/or consideration of connections between biotic and abiotic factors such as surface water, groundwater etc., as well as consideration of monitoring locations identified for abiotic monitoring. Detailed methods, specific to each development site (by sub-catchment area), are to be written up during the SIS stage. Annual monitoring reports will detail findings, make comparisons to previous data, and recommend adaptive management as appropriate. The refinement of monitoring locations should be completed in consultation with Conservation Halton, Region of Halton, and Town of Halton Hills staff.

Baseline Monitoring

The monitoring conducted for the SWS represents baseline data, but an additional year of monitoring should be undertaken during the SIS stage to provide more recent data and more fulsome coverage, to compare to the data collected in 2015. Conservation Halton requires 2 years of baseline monitoring.

Monitoring of vegetation, amphibians, breeding birds, benthics, and fish, should be undertaken in accordance with Conservation Halton's "Ecological Monitoring Protocols" (Version 1.0, February 2017) document. Mammals may be monitored incidentally through other surveys, as well as road mortality searches, and 2 winter wildlife surveys per year. Reptiles are to be monitored through the placement of snake cover boards, and basking and nesting surveys for turtles. Odonates can be monitored in conjunction with butterflies.

During Construction Monitoring

Annual monitoring is to occur during the construction phases, in areas proximal to the development. The during-construction phase may be protracted over many years based on proposed development phasing/servicing, as well as market conditions, etc. As such, the sequencing of during construction monitoring should consider this timeframe, and will require consideration of progress of development based on sub-catchments. It is proposed that the during-construction phase continue until 90% build-out by sub-catchment or other spatial extent to be determined at the SIS stage (for example, it is possible that some sub-catchments may not be experiencing any development, therefore in baseline phase, while others are greater than 90% built out, in post-construction phase).

During construction monitoring is to include the biological monitoring, as well as environmental inspections (e.g. erosion and sediment control, stormwater management, construction related mitigation measures).

Buffers have been recommended to protect natural heritage features. Their function should be monitored. Buffer planting plans will be developed and installed during the construction phase. Once the vegetation has been planted, it should be inspected to ensure that the appropriate species and number were planted in the correct locations. Plantings should be inspected again following the two year warranty period to check for survival. Dead or nearly dead trees and shrubs should be replaced at that time. Buffer function monitoring can be integrated with wildlife monitoring to assess whether buffers are providing the protection to the natural heritage features as designed (e.g. monitoring stations are to include buffers).

Post Construction Monitoring

Post construction monitoring is to occur every two years for 10 years post construction, starting at 90% build-out. Plantings, including buffer plantings, should be monitored at 5 and 10 years post construction. Buffer monitoring should assess whether buffers are providing the protection to the natural heritage features as designed (e.g. monitoring stations are to include buffers) and should include monitoring of encroachment, trampling, ad hoc trails, dumping, litter, invasive species, as well as light and noise impacts.

Thresholds and Adaptive Management

The approaches to monitoring should include thresholds that are quantitative and exceedances would trigger contingency measures. Thresholds are to be defined at the SIS stage and are to include differing monitoring strategies and target species for woodland and wetland habitats. Adaptive management techniques may include additional plantings, wildlife habitat creation, changes to lighting design, fencing, wildlife crossings, signage, and/or modifications to stormwater management, among others.



2020-04-23 Plotted By: richa. ed: 2017-09-20 Last Saved By: richar











Drawing E1

Halton Hills Premier Gateway Watercourse Thermal Regime

Legend

- Subject Area
- Greenbelt
- ∼ Permanent Watercourse
- Sphemeral Watercourse
- Headwater Drainage Feature (Parish)
- → Watercourse (MNRF)

Thermal Regime

- Cold
- Cool
- No Water
- Unknown





	Project: 1624
Date:	September 01, 201

200

400

600 Metres


Drawing E2

Halton Hills Premier Gateway

Aquatic Monitoring Stations

Legend

4826000

- Subject Area
- Benthic Invertebrate Monitoring Station (BTH)
- Electrofish Monitoring Station (EMS)
- Highway
- ---- Primary Road
- ---- Secondary Road
- Watercourse (LIO-MNRF)
- Assessed Reach
- Reach Break



4825000

9	NATURAL	RESOURCE	SOLUTIONS	INC.
5	Aquatic, Terrestri	ial and Wetland Bio	logists	

Map Produced by Natural Resource Solutions Inc. This map is proprietary and confidential and must not be duplicated or distributed by any means without express written permission of NRSI. Data provided by MNR© Copyright: Queen's Printer Ontario. Imagery: First Base Solutions Inc. (2010).

Date: September 21, 2017

400

800 Metres

NAD83 - UTM Zone 17 Size: 11x17" **1:12,500**